 DUPLICATE

IYOFN R s ags e ey
RN R I I 0
¥ PRGSO N0 TS o

BEFORE THE
Federal Communications Commission

o

¥ HINGTON, D.C. 2055407 -8 A 1I: RECEIVED

NOV - 5 2004

- Foderal Communications Commission
" Offica of Secretary

In re Application of
~ File Nos. BRH-20040601BHZ

Infinity Broadcasting East Inc. Facility ID # 9618 -

For Renewal of License for

Station WKRK-FM, Detroit, Michigan

' To: The Secretary

Attn:  Chief, Media Bureau

OPPOSITION TO PETITION TO DENY

INFINITY BROADCASTING EAST INC.

Steven A. Lerman
Dennis P. Corbett
David S. Keir

Philip A. Bonomo

Leventhal Senter & Lerman PLLC
Suite 600

2000 K Street, NW

Washington, DC 20006-1809
(202) 429-8970

November 5, 2004 Its Attomeys



SUMMARY ...eiriitiiiinreitisnsstssiensst st estsseteieessess st esaesessasasssssasnsensesssesssssssssasessessessssessessensessssens
L Petitioners Fail to Meet The Minimum Standards for a Petition to Deny. ........co............
IL The Petition Consists Principally Of Extraneous Allegations Unrelated To Station
TWEKREKL .ottt st s st s b b s et a bt e e ha e st e e s eseeaseseeneesenotoentenesseesserens
III.  The Remaining Allegations of Petitioners Involve A Very Small Amount of
Programming That Cannot Support The Extreme Relief That Petitioners Seek. ..............
IV.  Designating WKRK’s Renewal Application For A Hearing Is Particularly
Inappropriate Given The Sensitive Constitutional Issues Involved..........cccccoeevrvevennenn.....
V. CONCIUSION 1.errririiitriictt ittt st ettt e srestt et s et e s sas e et aesas e e e st e erseesneessesnseestsasesnessseennens

TABLE OF CONTENTS

.l

.3

.8



SUMMARY
The Petition to Deny the WKRK renewal application falls well short of the statutory
standards established for petitions to deny. Neither declaration provided by the Petitioners
claims unqualified “personal knowledge” of the specific allegations upon which the Petition is
premised, as required by Section 309(d)(1) of the Communications Act and applicable precedent.

o

The Petition is largely comprised of irrelevant claims and unsubstantiated assertions with

The Commission should therefore dismiss the Petition &s procedurally defective
e — —

no bearing on the renewal application now before the Bureau. Only a small fraction of the

discussion even relates to WKRK’s performance during the current license term, while the bulk
——— e

of the pleading focuses on allegations regarding other stations controlled by Infinity’s parent
et

company and prior license terms, as well as non-broadcast-related issues.

Once the many irrelevant claims are stripped away, the Petition ultimately rests on just
two broadcast segments amounting to less than sixty minutes of programming material over the
eight-year license period. This exceedingly limited amount of programming cannot possibly
justify the extreme relief that Petitioners seek. In addition, the two matters raised are not final.
Infinity has not paid the subject forfeiture in either case, nor has a court ordered it to do so. In
the absence of such final disposition, Section 504(c) of the Communications Act prohibits the
Commission from using these NALs to Infinity’s prejudice in this, or any other, proceeding.

Commission precedent makes clear that violations of the FCC’s indecency standard, even

‘where a resulting forfeiture Aas been paid, do not justify the severe step of designating a license
[ —

renewal application for hearing. In numerous instances during the current renewal cycle, the

S ——

Commission has granted renewal applications on a routine basis despite the pendency of an

-ii-



indecency letter of inquiry, an indecency NAL or the actual payment of an indecency forfeiture.
No reasonable distinction could be drawn between those proceedings and this one.

As to Petitioners’ “new” allegations of indecent broadcasts, only two clearly relate to
WKRK programming. Neither has been the subject of any Commission-initiated enforcement-
inquiry, and each involves only Petitioners’ generalized claims. Such broadcasts are not
indecent in any event under the Commission’s indecency standard.

Finally, the allegations raised by Petitioners focus on the content of WKRK

programming, and any initiation of further proceedings would squarely implicate Infinity’s
2 —_

constitutionally protected right of free speech. This factor weighs strongly against designating

WEKRK’s renewal appli aﬁwmfer‘heaﬁrﬂg\)
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BEFORE THE

Federal Communications Commission

WASHINGTON, D.C. 20554
' 00 N0V -8 A g1: 39

In re Application of
File Nos. BRH-2004060 l\BHZ
Facility ID # 9618 Bl 0 TN

Infinity Broadcasting East Inc.

For Renewal of License for
Station WKRK-FM, Detroit, Michigan

RECEIVED

To:  The Secretary NOV - % 20m
Attn:  Chief, Media Bureau e '

OPPOSITION TO PETITION TO DENY

Infinity Broadcasting East Inc. (“Infinity”), licensee of Station WKRK-FM, Detroit,
Michigan (“WKRK” or “Station”), hereby opposes the “Petition to Deny” (“Petition™) its license
renewal application filed September 1, 2004 by Right to Decency, Inc. (“RDI”) and the
American Decency Association (“ADA”) (collectively “Petitioners™). The Petition is a

\/_-—/_\——*n

wedurally defective, scattershot attack on WKRK premised on rhetorical hyperbole rather than

relevant facts and law. Stripped of its numerous immaterial and unsupported allegations, the
Petition clearly fails to warrant designation of the application for a hearing. The Media Bureau
(“Bureau”) should deny the Petition and promptly grant WKRK’s license renewal application.’

1. Petitioners Fail to Meet The Minimum Standards for a Petition to Deny.

As a threshold matter, the Petition falls far short of the statutory standards established for
petitions to deny, as the Petitioners have failed to provide affidavits or declarations that meet the

Commission’s standard for “personal knowledge” set forth in Section 309(d)(1) of the

! On September 23, 2004, Infinity and Petitioners filed a consent motion for extension of time,
requesting that Infinity be permitted to file its Opposition today, November 5, 2004. This
Opposition is therefore timely filed.



_309(d)(1) where the verification of the affiant is only according to the best of the affiant’s

Communications Act of 1934, as amended (the “Act”). See 47 U.S.C. § 309(d)(1). Accordingly,

the Commission should dismiss the Petition as procedurally defective.
Section 309(d)(1) va the Act requires that a petition to deny include “specific allegations
of fact sufficient to show that the petitioner is a party in interest and that a grant of the
application would be prima facie inconsistent with” the Act. Id. These allegations of fact mus
be supported by an affidavit or declaration from a person (or persons) with personal knowledge

thereof.? The Commission has made plain that “affidavits are insufficient under Section

knowledge, information and belief, or true in substance and fact. Under 47 C.F.R. § 1.16,
declarants must simply declare facts to be “true and correct” without any “best knowledge”
qualifier.

Petitioners included declarations made “under penalty of perjury” by the Presidents of
their respective organizations, yet neither declaration on its face is without qualification as
required by Section 309(d)(1) and Commission rules and precedent. Mary Ellen Gavin, on
behalf of RD], certifies only that “[t]he facts and circumstances stated in the foregoing Petition
are true and correct o the best of my knowledge.” (Emphasis added.) She then states that, while
certain exhibits attached to the Petition to Deny “are true and correct” (Exhibits N-Q), the
majority of those exhibits (Exhibits A-C, E-M and R-T) were prepared by others and merely

“believed to be true.” Without the requisite unqualified attestation, the Gavin Declaration is

inadequate to support the Petition. Similarly, the ADA’s William Johnson declares that the

2 See Astroline Communications Co. Ltd. Partnership v. FCC, 857 F.2d 1556 (D.C. Cir. 1988).
See also, e.g., Letter Decision, KLUV(FM), Dallas, TX, Transfer of Control of Station License
Assignment, 10 FCC Red 4517 (MMB 1995) (denying an indecency challenge to a transfer of
control application and citing Columbia Broadcasting System, 46 F.C.C. 2d 903, 905 (1974)).

* Columbia Broadcasting System, 46 F.C.C. 2d at 905.



Petition’s facts and circumstances are true and correct only “to the best of my knowledge,” and
that Exhibits A-C and E-M were prepared from audiotapes “made by others and sent to us,”
rather than based on broadcasts that he himself heard on Station WKRK. Johnson also lacks
first-hand knowledge of Exhibits R-T and, like Gavin, only “believe[s] them to be true.” .
Because neither declarant is able to attest to possessing the required unqualified knowledge of

_——— + e
the facts and circumstances alleged, the Petition is insufficiently supported and must be

dismissed.
./—\-

II. The Petition Consists Principally Of Extraneous Allegations Unrelated To Station
WKRK.

The procedurally defective Petition is largely comprised of irrelevant allegations with no
bearing on the renewal application now before the Bureau. The Petition is a sweeping attack not

limited to WKRK, but aimed more generally at Infinity Broadcasting Corporation (“IBC”) and

— ——

other stations licensed to it. Petitioners assert, among other things, that IBC, through its licensee

affiliates, is a “recidivist violator of a federal felony criminal statute,” has “orchestrated the
desecration” of St. Patrick’s Cathedral, fused “atheism” and “pornography,” committed “hate
crimes against Catholics, women and children,” and allied itself with “stunning evil” and

“virulently diabolical forces.” Petition at 2-3, 4, 8, 16, and 19. Petitioners go so far as to

* Johnson’s credibility is, in any event, very much in question. The Petition which Johnson has
supported “under penalty of perjury” twice states that, “so far as we know,” the Petition’s
allegations of “new” indecency violations have not previously been brought before the
Commission. See Petition at 3 and 4. Johnson knew or should have known that this statement
was false. In April of this year, Johnson himself, acting on behalf of the ADA, filed a complaint
involving material from five segments of the “Howard Stern Show,” all of which are part of what
ADA is now trying to label as first time, “new” violations. See Exhibit 1 hereto, an e-mail from
W. Johnson to Federal Communications Commission dated April 5, 2004. In his complaint, Mr.
Johnson states that “Volunteers have assisted us in monitoring Howard Stern’s radio show in 24
radio markets,” a statement that creates further doubt as to whether the transcripts included with
the Petition were based on WKRK broadcasts. 1d.



compare IBC unfavorably to the Ku Klux Klan. Petition at 4. These claims are uniformly

meritless, indeed reckless. Moreover, they involve religious matters and criminal accusations
\_//_—'-

that the Commission is in no position to adjudicate under any circumstances. Most significantly
— s

for purposes of the pending application, most of the assertions do not even relate to WKRK, the

| station for which license renewal is at issue here. .

The applicable standard for considering a broacicast license renewal application requires
examination of only the record of the subject station during the preceding license term.’
Petitioners ignore this standard entirely, suggesting instead that alleged violations concerning
other stations licensed to other IBC entities have a bearing upon whether WKRK’s license
should be renewed. In particular, the Petition relies heavily on alleged broadcast indecency
“violations” for which it has established no clear link to WKRK, raises matters involving IBC
stations other than WKRK, and attempts to resurrect long-settled enforcement matters involving
other stations that occurred during the previous license renewal cycle. When these irrelevant
allegations are properly disregarded, the Petition is seen for what it is -- a rhetorical broadside
against IBC and WKRK that fails to support its basic claims, let alone its extraordinary request
for an administrative hearing.

First, the Petition alleges that indecent material was aired on WKRK during various

episodes of the “Howard Stern Show” (“Stern Show”), but fails to provide evidence that the

material cited actually aired on WKRK. See Petition at 4-6. Such a demonstration is critical
©——————— .

5 Letter from Peter Doyle, Chief, Audio Division, Media Bureau, to James Donohue, Gregory L.
Masters and Richard J. Bodorff, File No. BRH-20030602CKX et al., 9-10 and n. 9 (October 7,
2003). For this reason, the broadcast license renewal application form (FCC Form 303-S) makes
clear that violations of the Commission’s rules need be reported only for “the station(s) for
which renewal is requested,” with the instructions stating even more plainly that “an applicant is
required to disclose only violations of the Communications Act of 1934, as amended, or the
Rules of the Commission that occurred at the subject station during the license term.” FCC
Form 303-S, Section II, Item 4 and Instructions for FCC Form 303-S (emphasis added).
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because during the time period that the Stern Show has aired on WKRXK, it has also been
broadcast on dozens of other stations, including both those licensed to Infinity and stations
owned and operated by other companies. Each Infinity station is independently responsible for
reviewing and editing the Stern program to conform to its understanding of suitable broadcast
content. In other words, IBC stations, including WKRK, exercise independent programming
discretion by editing the program, as they deem appropriate. W
Stern Show as aired on one IBC station cannot be deemed to represent the content of the same

—— e ————
episode of the program on any other IBC station.

With respect to license renewals, the Commission has specifically held that the content of
a syndicated program broadcast on one station cannot be used to establish what aired on a
second, editorially independent station.® In Eagle Radio, Inc., an informal objector to a license
renewal application asked the Commission to examine the syndicated programming of a Fort
Worth, Texas station based solely upon allegedly indecent material from the same syndicated
program that he heard on a Nevada station. The Commission rejected the request because the
Fort Worth station was an “independent editorial entity,” a fact that undermined any presumption
that syndicated material airing on the Nevada station necessarily aired on the Fort Worth station.”
Because the informal objector had failed to provide evidence to corroborate his indecency

allegation as to the Fort Worth station, the Commission dismissed the objection. The

¢ See Eagle Radio, Inc., 9 FCC Red 1294 (1994) (“Eagle Radio™).
"Id. at 1294.



Commission has recently affirmed this approach.® Significantly, the allegations at issue in both
Eagle Radio and Sagittarius were directed against the syndicated Stern Show.

The various transcripts of episodes of the Stern Show annexed to the Petition are
therefore immaterial to this proceeding because the Petitioners merely assert, but offer no
supporting evidence, that the transcribed material aired on WKRK (Exhibits A-C and E-M).
Specifically, none of these transcripts either includes a reference to Station WKRXK (call sign,
dial position or other station identification) or otherwise indicates that it is based on the WKRK
broadcast of the Stern Show on the date provided. This is of particular significance because, as
discussed above, the two declarations provided by the Petitioners make clear that all of the
“new”” Stern Show excerpts included with the Petition were based on “audio tapes made by
others and sent to us,” and merely transcribed by the Petitioners. The actual circumstances of
these broadcasts therefore have not been shown to be within the personal knowledge of the
Petitioners, as required by the FCC’s rules. Given this fundamental defect, the Commission
cannot credit the Petitioners’ unsupported allegations that the complained of material aired on
WKRK.

Even assuming the veracity of Petitioners’ allegations that the Stern Show aired on

WKRK as transcribed, the subj i i is i ithin the
meaning of the Commission’s i ency definition. The material contained in these excerpts

8 See Sagittarius Broadcasting Corp., 18 FCC Red 22551 (2003) (“Sagittarius™) (refusing to
review indecency allegations directed against WXRK(FM), New York, by a California listener,
and explicitly acknowledging that the “independent editing” of syndicated programming by
stations located in separate markets can affect what listeners in those markets ultimately hear).

? Moreover, it is significant that all of the alleged Stern Show material dates from 2001 and
2002, two years or more before the filing of the Petition, yet apparently this information was not
brought to the Commission’s attention until this year. See also note 4 supra. Not only does this
suggest that the Petitioners themselves were not concerned that these segments be brought to the
FCC’s attention in a timely manner, but the belated submission in connection with this license
renewal proceeding is prejudicial to WKRK.



does not describe sexual or excretory organs or activities in a patently offensive manner. Se;e
Petition, Exhibits A-C, F-H, and E-M.

Broadcasts plainly alleged by the Petitioners themselves to have aired on stations other
than WKRK have no relevance in the instant license renewal proceeding. For example, a
substantial portion of the Petition (pp. 4, 8-9 & 18-19) pertains to a 2002 broadcast of the “Opie
& Anthony” program t'hat originated on Station WNEW, New York, New York, and was never
aired on WKRK in any form at any time. Similarly, Petitioners cite a 1999 broadcast on Station
WLLD, Holmes Beach, Florida, programming that also did not air on WKRK. Regardless of
whether these programs contained indecent material — and the licensees involved have
steadfastly maintained that neither broadcast included material that violated the statute — neither
matter is relevant to this proceeding under the applicable standard.

Petitioners’ reference to “a seventeen year recor, ” also seeks to look beyond Infinity’s
record as licensee of WKRK. Only the current eight-year license term, however, has a bearing
on whether the WKRXK license should be renewed. Indecency cases involving other stations

licensed to subsidiaries of IBC during the previous license renewal cycle are of no relevance

.. here, not only because none involves WKRK, which in and of itself is dispositive, but also

because the Commission and the Justice Department have specifically and definitively settled all

claims with respect to the underlying facts of these cases pursuant to a 1995 Settlement



Agreement with IBC (“1995 Settlement Agreement”).'” Under that Settlement Agreement, none
of these broadcasts can be used against Infinity in any way.

Finally, contrary to the Petitioners’ assertion, Infinity is not in violation of the 1995
Settlement Agreement, all terms of which IBC fully and properly satisfied many years ago.
Indeed, the terms of the 1995 Settlement Agreement were met during the prior license term of
the subject licensees, and each of the stations involved was granted a license renewal in due
course. Petitioners’ allegation that 1995 Settlement Agreement has been violated appears to be
based on a fundamental misunderstanding of the terms of that agreement. Petitioners find fault
with Infinity’s alleged failure to take “any disciplinary action” against on-air employees accused
of airing indecent material. No such obligation was imposed in the 1995 Settlement Agreement. .

Thus, out of twenty-three pages of narrative assailing IBC and its affiliates, only a small
fraction of the discussion even relates to WKRK’s performance during the current license term.
See Petition at 6-7 and 7-8. As discussed below, these remaining allegations involve only a
minute portion of WKRK’s programming during the term, and have either already been
addressed by the Commission or do not constitute any violation of FCC Rules at all.

III.  The Remaining Allegations of Petitioners Involve A Very Small Amount of
Programming That Cannot Support The Extreme Relief That Petitioners Seek.

Once the many irrelevant claims raised by Petitioners are properly stripped away, its case
ultimately rests on two broadcasts amounting to less than sixty minutes of programming material

over an eight-year period — more than 4,000,000 minutes of programming overall. Petitioners

9 WKRK was not even licensed to Infinity at the time that these respective FCC decisions were
issued to subsidiaries of IBC. The 1995 Settlement Agreement was entered into on behalf of
IBC and the licensees of four stations to which the FCC had issued Notices of Apparent Liability
(“NALs”) or Forfeiture Orders for broadcast of allegedly indecent material. WKRK did not
become part of the IBC group of stations until 1996, the year after the Settlement Agreement was
signed, when CBS Inc., WKRK’s then parent company, merged with IBC.
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cite one decision involving the Howard Stern broadcast of July 26, 2001 (Exhibit S) and one
decision involving the Deminski & Doyle broadcast of January 9, 2002 (Exhibit R) —in each of
which indecency forfeitures have been assessed against Infinity for material aired on WKRK.!!
Petition to Deny at 7-8. Both of these matters remain pending. Infinity has not paid the subject
forfeiture in either case. In the absence of such a payment, Section 504(c) of the Act prohibits
the Commission from using the Stern or Deminski & Doyle NALs to Infinity’s prejudice in this
proceeding. See 47 U.S.C. § 504(c) (“In any case where the Commission issues a notice of
apparent liability looking toward the imposition of a forfeiture under this Act, that fact shall not
be used, in any other proceeding before the Commission, to the prejudice of the person to whom
such notice was issued, unless (i) the forfeiture has been paid, or (ii) a court of competent
jurisdiction has ordered payment of such forfeiture, and such order has become final.”). Because
Infinity has not paid any forfeiture in connection with either broadcast, and no court has entered
a final order compelling such payment, the existence of these two NALs is of no legal
consequence and may not factor into the Commission’s consideration of WKRK’s license
renewal application.

Quite apart from these Section 504(c) considerations, these broadcasts do not provide any
basis to deny or delay the renewal of WKRK’s license. Infinity has previously shown that the
July 26, 2001 Stern broadcast involved an exceedingly small amount of material that, in any
event, was not indecent under the FCC’s standards.'? In any event, the FCC has already found
an NAL to be the appropriate response to this broadcast, without any other adverse action. The

same holds true for the proceeding involving the Deminski & Doyle broadcast of

! The Petition misidentifies the Stern transcript as Exhibit R and the Deminski & Doyle
transcript as Exhibit S.

12 See Response to Notice of Apparent Liability for Forfeiture, EB-01-TH-0633/MG (filed April
19, 2004).



January 9, 2002, in which, after full consideration by the Commission, an NAL was found by the
FCC to be the appropriate action.'?

Commission précedent makes clear that violations of the FCC’s indecency standard by a
licensee, even where a forfeiture covering multiple indecent incidents has been paid, do not
justify the severe step of designating that licensee’s renewal application for hearing. In
numerous instances during the current renewal cycle, the Commission has routinely granted the
renewal application of a licensee despite the pendency of an indecency letter of inquiry,
indecency NAL or the actual payment of an indecency forfeiture.'*

In four of these renewals (WXTB(FM), WPLA(FM), WRLX(FM), and WCKT(FM)), the
relevant $715,000 NAL related to a syndicated show, “Bubba the Love Sponge,” and covered
seven separate incidents of indecency on that show. See Clear Channel Broadcasting Licenses,
Inc., 19 FCC Red 1768 (2004) (involving two “Bubba the Love Sponge” segments on July 19,

2001 and additional segments of that show on November 14, 19, 26 and 27, 2001 and December

'* To the extent that the Commission used the Deminski & Doyle NAL to wamn broadcasters
regarding the initiation of revocation proceedings, that warning was strictly prospective in
nature, and cannot be used retroactively to Infinity’s detriment. See Infinity Broadcasting
Operations, Inc., 18 FCC Red 6915, 6919 (2003). Cf. Complaints Against Various Broadcast
Licensees Regarding Their Airing Of The “Golden Globe Awards” Program, 19 FCC Red 4975,
4981-82 (2004) (“Golden Globe Awards”) (FCC held that a change in its interpretation of

18 U.S.C. § 1464 could not be used to penalize a broadcaster for material aired before the
announced change because the broadcasters in question “did not have the requisite notice to
justify a penalty”), citing Trinity Broadcasting of Florida, Inc. v. FCC, 211 F.3d 618 (D.C. Cir.
2000) (court reversed Commission decision that denied a renewal application for abuse of
process in connection with the Commission’s minority ownership rules because the court held
the Commission had not provided sufficiently clear notice of what those rules required).

1% See, e.g., FCC File Nos. BRH-20031121APL (WAZX-FM, Cleveland, Georgia) (37,000
indecency NAL paid; renewal granted); BRH-20031001CFF (WXTB(FM), Clearwater, Florida);
BRH-20031001AAD (WPLA(FM), Callahan, Florida); BRH-20030930BDG (WRLX(FM),
West Palm Beach, Florida); BRH-20030930ARG (WCKT(FM), Port Charlotte, Florida); BRH-
20031001ABB (WTKS-FM, Cocoa Beach, Florida); BRH-20031001BSU (WBGG-FM, Fort
Lauderdale, Florida); BRH-20030602CMN (WRXL(FM), Richmond, Virginia); and BRH-
20030602CLS (WWDC-FM, Washington, DC). See also FCC File No. BRH—ZOOSIOOIAKI
(WLLD(FM), Holmes Beach, Florida).

H
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27, 2001) (a copy of this NAL is attached hereto as Exhibit 2). The license renewals of these
four stations were granted on March 27, 2004, after the forfeitures were paid. In at least two
other cases, the licensee also paid the subject indecency forfeiture, and the license renewals were
subsequently granted (WAZX-FM and WWDC-FM). Indeed, the WWDC-FM renewal
application was granted despite a $55,000 indecency NAL issued against the station, and paid by
the licensee, for broadcasts of the “Elliott in the Morning” show. See AMFM Radio Licenses,
LLC, 18 FCC Red 19917 (2003) (a copy of this NAL is attached hereto as Exhibit 3). Here,
Infinity has been found apparently liable in connection with just two instances of alleged
indecent programming and neither assessed forfeiture is final. Under Commission precedent, the
Stern and Deminski & Doyle NALs do not serve as a bar to the grant of WKRK’s license
renewal application.

As to Petitioners’ “new” allegations of indecent broadcasts, only two — the Deminski &
Doyle broadcasts of October 16, 2001 (Exhibit N) and July 18, 2002 (Exhibit O) — include
specific claims relating to WKRK programming.’®> Petition at 6-7. Importantly, neither has
been the subject of a Letter of Inquiry or any other Commission-initiated fact-finding effort.
They involve only Petitioners’ generalized claims. Even assuming, however, that the
Petitioners’ untested transcripts accurately reflect what actually aired on WKRK, these
broadcasts are devoid of any explicit description of sexual or excretory acts or organs and are
otherwise not patently offensive under the Commission’s indecency standards. Neither forms

the basis for denial of WKRX’s renewal application.

'3 Petitioners’ allegations involving former WKRX personalities Kramer & Twitch (Exhibits P
and Q) are unsupported and irrelevant. Petition at 7. Petitioners fail to make any specific
allegations regarding the content of the broadcast cited, and rely on non-broadcast material
allegedly used to promote the “Kramer & Twitch Show.”

-11 -



IV. Designating WKRK’s Renewal Application For A Hearing Is Particularly
Inappropriate Given The iti ituti sues In

The allegations raised by Petitioners focus on the content of WKRK programming, which
squarely implicates Infinity’s constitutionally protected right of free speech. Yet paradoxically,
Petitioners would have the Bureau believe that “[t]his case should not be about the first
amendment Because, in broadcast renewal proceedings, there is no inherent first amendment
right in favor of the broadcaster.”'® The Petitioners are wrong. The Bureau cannot ignore the
critical constitutional ramifications of designating WKRK’s renewal application for a hearing on
the basis of that station’s programming content.

As the Commission has repeatedly recognized, the First Amendment requires that the
agency’s content-based regulation be exercised in a cautious and restrained manner.'” Taking
the drastic step of designating WKRK'’s renewal application for a hearing — even if Petitioners’
claims were not so meager — would clearly violate this obligation, and invariably result in a

profound “chilling” effect on the broadcast industry as a whole. As regulated parties whose

' Petition at 15. The Petitioners cite Red Lion Broadcasting, 395 U.S. 367, in support of their
argument, but do not cite a specific portion of that decision or explain how it supports the
Petitioners’ argument. Moreover, the language quoted by Petitioners does not appear anywhere
in the Red Lion decision. The Supreme Court’s boilerplate recitation in Red Lion that the FCC
must “consider the demands of the public interest in the course of granting licenses,” id. at 379,
says nothing about the First Amendment implications of this case and, in particular, does not
alter the Commission’s obligation to respect the First Amendment rights of broadcasters when
considering a broadcast license renewal application.

17 See, e.g., Golden Globe Awards at 4977, citing Action for Children’s Television v. FCC, 852
F. 2d 1332, 1334 (D.C. Cir. 1988) (“ACT I’’) (“Broadcast material that is indecent but not
obscene is protected by the First Amendment; the FCC may regulate such material only with due
respect for the high value our Constitution places on freedom and choice in what people may say
and hear.”). See also id. at 340 n. 14 (“the potential chilling effect of the FCC’s generic
definition of indecency will be tempered by the Commission’s restrained enforcement policy.”);
FCCv. Pacifica Foundation, 438 U.S. 726, 761 n. 4 (1978) (Justice Powell concluding in
concurring statement that “[S]ince the Commission may be expected to proceed cautiously, as it
has in the past, I do not foresee an undue ‘chilling’ effect on broadcasters’ exercise of their
rights.”).
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existence depends on the authority granted to them by the Commission, broadcasters rationally
can be expected to react (indeed, overreact) to the threat of renewal hearings with “safe”
programming intended to avoid the pitfalls of indecency enforcement.'® This regrettable chilling
effect would sweep unnecessarily broadly, suppressing fully protected, non-indecent speech
intended for adults in a way prohibited by the First Amendment. See Reno v. ACLU, 521 U.S.
844, 875 (1997) (“The Government cannot, consistent with the First Amendment, “reduce[e] the
adult population . . . to . . . only what is fit for children.”).

Furthermore, the cases cited by the Petitioners in which the Commission either forced a
licensee to relinquish its licenses or designated fenewal applications for hearing involved
violations unrelated to the content of the programming aired on those stations.'® These cases are
simply inapplicable here, as they involved violations of technical and public safety rules, as well
as silent station status, not issues related to the programming content. The cases relied on by
Petitioners have no bearing on this proceeding, and the Bureau should disregard them. Indeed,
the Petitioners’ claim that the Willis and Family Broadcasting decisions demonstrate that the
Commission treats large corporate licensees more favorably than smaller, minority-owned
licensees such as Willis Broadcasting and Family Broadcasting, is reckless and unsupported. It
improperly attributes discriminatory motives, without a shred of evidence, to Commission

personnel. Petition at 19-21.

' Courts and the Commission have consistently recognized that “vagueness is inherent” in the
indecency definition. See ACT 1, 852 F. 2d at 1344. Indeed, Infinity has consistently argued that
the Commission’s indecency enforcement scheme is unconstitutional for a variety of reasons.
See, e.g., Response to Notice of Apparent Liability for Forfeiture, EB-02-IH-0109 (filed June 4,
2003). See also Petition for Reconsideration, File No. 99090433 (Station WLLD(FM), Holmes
Beach, FL), filed April 19, 2004. All of these arguments are incorporated by reference herein.

' Petition at 12, 19-21 (citing Hearing Designation Order, Family Broadcasting, Inc., 11 FCC
Red 6647 (1996); Memorandum Opinion and Order and Hearing Designation Order, Family
Broadcasting, Inc., 17 FCC Rcd 6180 (2002); and Order, Willis Broadcasting Corporation, 19
FCC Red 10502 (2004).
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\Z Conclusion
For all of the foregoing reasons, the Petition should be dismissed without further action,
and the application for renewal of the WKRK license should be promptly granted.
Respectfully submitted,

INFINITY BROADCASTING EAST INC.

By: MW%W

Steven A. Lerman
Dennis P. Corbett
David S. Keir

Philip A. Bonomo

Leventhal Senter & Lerman PLLC
Suite 600

2000 K Street, NW

Washington, DC 20006-1809
(202) 429-8970

November 5, 2004 Its Attorneys
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DECLARATION

I, Stephen A. Hildebrandt, Vice President of Infinity Broadcasting East Inc., the
licensee of Station WKRK-FM, Detroit, Michigan, hereby declare under penalty of
perjury that I have reviewed the foregoing Opposition to Petition to Deny, which is dated

November 5, 2004, and that the facts set forth therein are true and correct.

&'/074/5%/%/74//%

Stephen A. Hildebrandt
Vice President
Infinity Broadcasting East Inc.

//’LS’ ﬁﬁ‘

Date




EXHIBIT 1

Email Complaint of Bill Johnson,
American Decency Association, dated April 5, 2004



-~=~-0Original Message--~=~-- )
From: Bill Johnson [mzilto:bjohnson@americandecency.orgl]

P
AP, S5, 2004

Federal Communications Commigsion
Consumer & Governmental Affairs Buzeau
Consumer Complaints

445 12th Street, SW

Washington, D.C, 20554

Deaxr Sir/Madam:

Enclosed you will find officizl complaints on the Howard Stern Radio Show for five .
separate dates for various cities throughout the U.S.. Volunteers ?ave assisted us i odio
monitoring Howard Stexn's radio show in 24 radio markets. We have in our possession a
tapes containing content which we believe is in direct viclation of FCC decency
standards.

We are filing official complaints on the 5 separate dates as
fellows:

April 22z, 2002 - discussion of masturbation and oral sex
Agril 29 . 2002 -- THE PRIEST AND MOLESTING KIDS IN CDNFESSION%LS May- 2, 2002 ’"Lgdytember
Di/anal sex and accompanying sound effects January 2, 2002 - "Gay Wheel of Sex" Sep

20, 2002 - segment on ejaculation



i+

At your request, we will furnlsh you any and all audic tapes specific to the particular
radio stations, )
. ! §
Qur cemplaint is with all the stations . B - !

H

Again underscoring the above, we have tape'recordings for a number of radio stations.

Additionally, enclosed, you will find typed'transcripts attached for the complaints which:®
we are filing.

'

Bill Johnsan, president ) ! :
American Decency Association
231-924-4050



EXHIBIT 2

Clear Channel Broadcasting Licenses, Inc.,
19 FCC Rcd 1768 (2004)

(“Bubba the Love Sponge” broadcasts of July 19, 2001(two);
November 14, 19, 26 and 27, 2001; and December 27, 2001 on
Station WPLA(FM), Callahan, Florida;

Station WCKT(FM), Port Charlotte, Florida;

Station WXTB(FM), Clearwater, Florida; and
Station WRLX(FM), West Palm Beach, Florida)



Federal Communications Commission ¥CC 04-17

Before the
Federal Communications Copumission
Washington, D.C. 20554

In the Matter of File No. EB-02-1H-0261

NAL Acct. No. 2004 3208 0011
CLEAR CHANNEL BROADCASTING FRN # 0001587971
LICENSES, INC.
Licensee of Stations
WPLA(FM), Callahan, Florida Facility ID # 51975
WCKT(FM), Port Charlotte, Florida
(Formerly Station WRLR(FM)) Facility ID # 35213

CITICASTERS LICENSES, L.P. FRN # 0003017423
Licensee of Station
WXTB(FM), Clearwater, Florida Facility ID# 11274

CAPSTAR TX LIMITED PARTNERSHIP FRN # 0003474947

Licensee of Station
WRLX(FM), West Palm Beach, Florida

R WA R T W Wl g W NS I W W WL W T e

Facility ID # 20442

NOTICE OF APPARENT LIABILITY FOR FORFEITURE
Adopted: January 26, 2004 Released: January 27, 2004

By the Commission: Chairman Powell, Commissioners Martin and Adelstein issuing separate
statements; Commissioner Copps dissenting and issuing a separate statement.

1. INTRODUCTION

1. In this Notice of Apparent Liability For Forfeiture (“NAL"™), issued pursuant to
Section 503(b) of the Conunumcatlons Act of 1934, as amended (the “Act™), and Section 1.80 of
the Commission’s rules,' we find that the captioned licensees, all of which are subsidiaries of
Clear Channel Communications, Inc. (“Clear Channel”), apparently violated 18 U.S.C. § 1464
and 47 CF.R. § 73.3999, by willfully and repeatedly airing indecent material over the captioned
stations during the July 19, November 14, 19, 26 and 27 and December 27, 2001, broadcasts of
the “Bubba the Love Sponge” program. Furthermore, we find that they each appear to have
failed to maintain copies of certain required documents in the public inspection files of each of
their respective captxoned stations, in apparent willful violation of Section 73.3526(e)(10) of the
Commission’s rules.” Based on the totality of the evidence before us and Clear Channel’s history
of transgressions relating to the broadcast of indecent material over stations licensed to its

'47U.8.C. § 503(b); 47 CF.R. § 1.80.

247 CFR. § 73.3526(¢)(10).
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subsidiaries, we conclude that Clear Channel is apparently liable for a monetary forfeiture in the
amount of Seven Hundred Fifty-Five Thousand Dollars ($755,000), the statutory maximum of
$27,500 each for 26 indecency violations ($715,000), and the base amount of $10,000 each for
four public file violations ($40,000).

II. BACKGROUND

2. This proceeding arises out of a series of formal complaints filed on behalf of
Douglas Vanderlaan against Clear Channel alleging: (1) indecency violations; (2) public
inspection file violations; (3) improper intimidation by Clear Channel against the complainant;
and (4) the promotion and glorification of the use of illegal drugs in Clear Channel’s broadcasts
and on its web site.’ The Enforcement Bureau (the “Bureau”) issued a series of letters of
inquiry* and the record includes responses by Clear Channel’ and by the complainant, to Clear
Channel’s responses.’

III. DISCUSSION

A. Indecency Analysis

3. The Federal Communications Commission is authorized to license radio and
television broadcast stations and is responsible for enforcing the Commission’s rules and applicable -
statutory provisions concerning the operation of those stations. The Commission’s role in
overseeing program content is very limited. The First Amendment to the United States Constitution
and Section 326 of the Act prohibit the Commission from censoring program material and from

* Complaint of Douglas Vanderlaan, dated April 3, 2002 (“First Complaint "); Second Complaint of Douglas
Vanderlaan, dated October 10, 2002 (“Second Complaint™); Third Complaint and Supplement of Douglas
Vanderlaan, dated January 27, 2003 (“Third Complaint”).

4 Letter from Charles W. Kelley, Chief, Investigations and Hearings Division, Enforcement Bureau, to Clear
Channel Broadcasting Licenses, Inc. and Citicasters Licenses, L.P., dated July 5, 2002 (“Initial LOP"); Letters
from Maureen F. Del Duca, Chief, Investigations and Hearings Division, Enforcement Bureau, to Clear
Channel Broadcasting Licenses, Inc., Citicasters Licenses, L.P., Capstar TX Limited Partmership and Kenncth
E. Wyker, Senior Vice President & General Counsel, Clear Channel Communications, Inc., dated August 18,
2003 (“Second LOI" and “Third LOI").

5 Letter from John M. Burgett, Esq., to Marlene H. Dortch, Secretary, Federal Communications Commission,
dated July 15, 2002; Letter from Kenneth W. Wyker, Senior Vice President & General Counsel, Clear
Channel Communications, Inc., to Marlene H. Dortch, Secretary, Federal Communications Commission,
dated Angust 1, 2002 (“Initial LOI Response™); Letter from Kenneth W. Wyker, Senior Vice President &
General Counsel, Clear Channel Communications, Inc., to Marlene H. Dortch, Secretary, Federal
Communications Commission, dated August 28, 2002 (“Supplement to Initial LOI Response™); Letter from
Richard W. Wolf, Vice President, Clear Channel Communications, Inc., to Marlene H. Dortch, Secretary,
Federal Communications Commission, dated September 16, 2003 (“Second LOI Response”™); Letter from
Richard W. Wolf, Vice President, Clear Channel Communications, Inc., to Marlene H. Dorich, Secretary,
Federal Communications Commission, dated September 16, 2003 (“Third LO!I Response™); Letter from John
M. Burgett, Esq., to Judy Lancaster, Esq., Investigations and Hearings Division, Enforcement Burean

¢ Letter from Arthur V. Belendiuk, Esq., to Marlene H. Dortch, Secretary, Federal Communications
Commission, dated August 13, 2002 (“First Vanderlaan Reply™); Letter from Douglas G. Vanderlaan to
Marlene H. Dortch, Secretary, Federal Communications Commission, dated September 24, 2003. (“Second
Vanderlaan Reply™)
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interfering with broadcasters’ freedom of expression.7 The Commission does, however, have the
authority to enforce statutory and regulatory provisions restricting indecency and obscenity.
Specifically, it is a violation of federal law to broadcast obscene or indecent programming. Title 18
of the United States Code, Section 1464, prohibits the utterance of “any obscene, indecent or
profane language by means of radio communication.” In addition, consistent with a subsequent
statute and court case,’ Section 73.3999 of the Commission’s rules provides that radio and
television stations shall not broadcast indecent material during the period 6 a.m. through 10 p.m.

4, As an initial matter, we find that all of the seven segments at issue in this NAL were
broadcast during this prohibited time period, at the time of day and on the specific dates alleged by
Mr. Vanderlaan in his First Complaint, '° albeit not by all four of the captioned stations. In this
regard, Clear Channel has acknowledged that segments 1, 2 and 7 were indeed broadcast, and that
the transcripts for these segments submitted by Mr. Vanderlaan are accurate.!' Clear Channel states
that it did not retain audio recordings or transcripts of its own for the broadcasts encompassed by
the remaining three segments, segments 3, 4, 5 and 6. Consequently, as to those segments, Clear
Channel refuses to “admit or acknowledge that the material in the transcripts provided by Mr.
Vanderlaan aired as he alleges.”"” However, based upon the evidence before us, including Clear
Channel’s failure to refute adequately Mr. Vanderlaan's allegations, we find that Segments 3, 4, 5
and 6 were also broadcast at the time and on the dates indicated in the First Complaint, and that the
transcripts for those segments accurately depict those broadcasts.”” Clear Channel concedes that
Stations WXTB(FM), WRLX(FM) and WPLA(FM) regularly aired the “Bubba the Love Sponge”
program during the entire period of time encompassed by all seven segments and does not claim
that any of the stations edited the show. Consequently, we find that Stations WXTB(FM),
WRLX(FM) and WPLA(FM) broadcast all seven of the segments, as alleged. Clear Channel,
however, represents that Station WCKT(FM) did not begin carrying the “Bubba the Love Sponge”
program until October 29, 2001." Because segments 1 and 2 were broadcast before WCKT(FM)
commenced airing the program, we find that the station broadcast only segments 3 through 7.

5. Any consideration of government action against allegedly indecent programming
must take into account the fact that such speech is protected under the First Amendment.”” The

"See 47U.S.C. § 326.
$18US.C. § 1464.

? Public Telecommunications Act of 1992, Pub. L. No. 102-356, 106 Stat. 949 (1992); Action for Children's
Television v. FCC, 58 F.3d 654 (D.C. Cir 1995), cert. denied, 516 U.S. 1043 (1996) (“Act III).

1° See Attachment A.
' Supplement to Initial LOI Response at 2.

2 Initial LOI Response at 1.

¥ Infinity Broadcasting Corp. of Los Angeles (KROQ-FM), Memorandum Opinion and Order, 17 FCC Red
9892, 9896, 17 17-18 (2002).

¥ See Third LOI Response at 1.

¥ U.S. CoNsT., amend. I; Action for Children’s Television v. FCC, 852 F.2d 1332, 1344 (D.C. Cir. 1988)
(“4CT ).
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federal courts consistently have upheld Congress’s authority to regulate the broadcast of indecent
material, as well the Commission’s interpretation and implementation of the governing statute.'®
Nevertheless, the First Amendment is a critical constitutional limitation that demands that, in
indecency determinations, we proceed cautiously and with appropriate restraint.!”

6. The Commission defines indecent speech as language that, in context, depicts or
describes sexual or excretory activities or organs in terms patently offensive as measured by
contemporary community standards for the broadcast medium.'®

Indecency findings involve at least two fundamental determinations. First,
the material alleged to be indecent must fall within the subject matter scope
of our indecency definition — that is, the material must describe or depict
sexual or excretory organs or activities. Second, the broadcast must be
patently offensive as measured by contemporary community standards for
the broadcast medium.”

7. As an initial matter, all of the seven program segments, in one manner or another,
unquestionably involved on-air discussions relating to descriptions or depictions of sexual organs,
excretory organs and/or activities of a sexual nature. The broadcasts involved conversations about
such things as oral sex, penises, testicles, masturbation, intercourse, orgasms and breasts. Clear
Channel does not dispute that the broadcasts involved such descriptions or depictions.”
Accordingly, we conclude that each of the segments that were broadcast satisfies the first prong of
our indecency analysis.

8. Having satisfied the first prong, we now turn to an analysis of whether the material
in the seven segments subject to this NAL satisfies the second prong of the Commission’s two-part
indecency analysis — that is, whether the broadcasts were patently offensive as measured by

' Title 18 of the United States Code, Section 1464 (18 U.S.C. § 1464), prohibits the utterance of “any
obscene, indecent or profane langnage by means of radio communication.” FCC v. Pacifica Foundation, 438
U.S. 726 (1978). See also ACT I, 852 F.2d at 1339; Action for Children’s Television v. FCC, 932 F.2d 1504,
1508 (D.C. Cir. 1991), cert. denied, 503 U.S. 914 (1992) (“ACT IT"); ACT IIJ, 58 F.3d 654.

T ACT I, 852 F.2d at 1344 (“Broadcast material that is indecent but not obscene is protected by the First
Amendment; the FCC may regulate such material only with due respect for the high value our Constitution
places on freedom and choice in what people may say and hear.™); ACT I, 852 F.2d at 1340, n.14 (“the
potential chilling effect of the FCC's general definition of indecency will be tempered by the Commission’s
restrained enforcement policy.”) See also United States v. Playboy Entertainment Group, Inc., 529 U.S.
803, 813-15 (2000).

'® Infinity Broadcasting Corporation of Pennsylvania, 2 FCC Red 2705 (1987) {(subsequent history omitted)
(citing Pacifica Foundation, 56 FCC 2d 94, 98 (1975), aff’d sub nom. FCC v. Pacifica Foundation, 438 U.S.
726 (1978)).

¥ Industry Guidance on the Commission’s Case Law Interpreting 18 U.S.C. §1464 and Enforcement Policies
Regarding Broadcast Indecency (“Indecency Policy Statement”), 16 FCC Red 7999, 8002, 9 7-8 (2001)
(emphasis in original).

2 See Initial LOI Response at 2-6. As a preface to its analysis of each segment, Clear Channel states
“Although the transcripts do include references and phrases of a sexual nature, and while some may find such
material to be distasteful or offensive, these references and phrases alone do not mske the broadcasts
indecent.” Id. at2.
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contemporary community standards for the broadcast medium.! In our assessment of whether
broadcast material is patently offensive, “the full context in which the material appeared is critically
important.””? Three principal factors are significant to this contextual analysis: (1) the explicitness
or graphic nature of the description; (2) whether the material dwells on or repeats at length
descriptions of sexual or excretory organs or activities; and (3) whether the material appears to
pander or is used to titillate or shock.” In examining these three factors, we must weigh and
balance them to determine whether the broadcast material is patently offensive because “[e]ach
indecency case presents its own particular mix of these, and possibly, other factors.”®* In particular
cases, the weight of one or two of the factors may outweigh the others, either rendering the
broadcast material patently offensive and consequently indecent,?” or, alternatively, removing the
broadcast material from the realm of indecency.?®

9. We turn now to an analysis of these factors as they relate to each segment,”’ to
determine whether the material that was broadcast, taken in context, is patently offensive as
measured by contemporary community standards for the broadcast medium.

Segment 1 (aired July 19, 2001 between 6:30 and 8:30 a.m.):®® In this segment,? skits in

which the voices of purported cartoon characters talk about drugs and sex are inserted
between advertisements for Cartoon Network’s Friday night cartoons that are identified as
“provocative adult cartoons to help you get your freak on.” The first skit begins when
Shaggy tells Scooby Doo that he needs crack cocaine but has no money to buy it. Sccoby
Doo responds that Shaggy could “su(bleep)ck d(bleep)ick” to pay for the drugs. In the next
skit, Fat Albert, a/k/a Phat Diddy Daddy, gets killed in a drive-by shooting after bragging
that Jennifer Lopez had been “s(bleep)ing Diddy Daddy’s (bleep)ck the previous night.
The third skit begins with the theme music from “The Jetsons™ cartoon show. George
Jetson then begins telling Jane that he no longer needs Viagra because he got a “Spacely

2! The “contemporary standards for the broadcast medium” criterion is that of an average broadcast listener
and with respect to Commission decisions, does not encompass any particular geographic area. See
WPBN/WTOM License Subsidiary, Inc., 15 FCC Red 1838, 1841 (2000).

2 Indecency Policy Statement, 16 FCC Red at 8002, § 9 (emphasis in original).

2 Id. at 8002-15, Y 8-23.

 Id. at 8003, ] 10.

% Id. at 8009, § 19 (citing Tempe Radio, Inc (KUPD-FM}, 12 FCC Red 21828 (MMB 1997) (forfeiture paid))
(extremely graphic or explicit nature of references to sex with children outweighed the fleeting nature of the
references); EZ New Orleans, Inc. (WEZB(FM)), 12 FCC Red 4147 (MMB 1997) (forfeiture paid) (same)).

% Id. at 8010, 920 (“the manner and purpose of a presentation may well preclude an indecency determination
even though other factors, such as explicitness, might weigh in favor of an indecency finding™).

77 See Attachment A passim.

% The complainant's transcript reflects bleeps of certain offensive words. A review of the relevant tapes
indicates that the letters before the word “(bleep)” in many cases were aired. However, although the transcript
suggests otherwise, a review of the relevant tape indicates that the letters after the word “(bleep)” were
completely bleeped. In any event, our indecency finding is not based on airing of the specific bleeped words.

B See Attachment A at 1-2.
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Sprocket (bleep)ck ring.” After George flips a switch to activate the device, sound effects
indicate that the device malfunctions, and the skit ends with George calling for Jane to tum
off the device. Next, Alvin the Chipmunk complains that he hasn’t “been laid in almost six
weeks.” Another chipmunk responds that his problem is due to the “f{ibleep)cking pussy
music we play” and begins to sing a more “kick ass” song directing a “filthy chipmunk-
whore” to “[sJuck on my (inaudible)} Chipmunk (bleep)s,” “[p]ut ‘em in your mouth and
(bleep)uck ‘em.” He continues by singing “They taste like pistachios. They’re warm and
fuzzy. Suck my (bleep).” The song is interrupted by a final advertisement for “Cartoons
with Balls.”

This segment contains sufficiently graphic and explicit references to sexual and excretory
organs and activities to satisfy the first criterion of our contextual analysis. Such sexual
references are found in each of the skits and are repeated throughout the segment, satisfying
the second factor of our contextual analysis. Finally, the use of cartoon characters in such a
sexually explicit manner during hours of the day when children are likely to be listening is
shocking and makes this segment patently offensive. It is foreseeable that young children
would be particularly attentive listeners to this segment because of the character voices and
the cartoon theme music used in the segment. The calculated and callous nature of the
stations’ decision to impose this predictably offensive material upon young, vulnerable
listeners is particularly compelling and weighs heavily in our analysis. Thus, the segment
also satisfies the third factor of our contextual analysis. Consequently, this segment is
apparently indecent.

Segment 2 (July 19, 2001, between 6:30 and 8:14 am.): In this segment,” a male

applicant for a job as an underwear model calls the model search hotline and describes
his as the “perfect penis,” so gorgeous that “[e]very f(bleep)ing, every - every ounce of
f(bleep)cking co(bleep) purple (inaudible) of it” “should be hanging in the f{bleep)cking
Louvre,” and so strong that it can lift a 25-pound weight and can split his pants like the
Incredible Hulk. Such vivid descriptions of the caller’s penis satisfy the first criterion of
our contextual analysis. The entire segment discusses the man’s penis, and graphic
descriptions of it are referenced throughout the segment. Thus, the second criterion of
the contextual analysis is also satisfied. The sole purpose of these vivid descriptions
apparently is to shock and titillate listeners. Thus, the third criterion of our contextual
analysis is satisfied. Because this segment repeats graphic and explicit descriptions of a
sexual organ in an effort to titillate listeners, it appears to be patently offensive and
indecent.

Segment 3 (November 14, 2001, Between 7:00 and 8:55 a.m.): In this segment,”* one of

the men participating in the on-air discussion is Ned, a self-described “loud masturbator.”
He views the act of masturbating in public as a performance and states that he looks as
though he’s having a “grand mal seizure” when he does it. When asked to do so by the
host, Ned, with increasing drum beat rhythms as an accompaniment, reenacts
masturbating and reaching orgasm. Despite the use of euphemisms such as “wax[ing]
your carrot” when referring to masturbation, and “sparky” when referring to a penis, the
sexual references in the segment are unmistakable and sufficiently explicit to satisfy the
first criteria of our contextual analysis. The entire segment dwells at length on

30 See Attachment A at 3-5.

3! See Attachment A at 5-7.
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masturbation. Thus, the second criterion of our contextual analysis is also satisfied.
Finally, the participants’ discussions of masturbating styles and techniques, and Ned’s
simulation of such a sex act, make it apparent that the segment was used to titillate and -
shock the program’s listeners. In doing so, this segment satisfies the third criterion of our
contextual analysis. Accordingly, we find that this segment appears to be patently
offensive and indecent.

Segment 4 (November 19, 2001, between 8:00 and 9:00 a.m.): In this segment,” three

males interview a female caller about her sexual exploits with “Spider,” another man. They
discuss the length of Spider’s penis, the length of time their sexual encounter lasted, and the
sexual techniques they used. After the caller indicated that she had given Spider oral sex,
one host responded that he hoped Spider had not given her oral sex because heavier
women, like her, have “some cheese down there.” The hosts then began ridiculing the
caller about her size and asked “Are you like a Ball Park Plank -- Frank, you p{ljump when
we bang ya?” The conversation between the hosts and the caller was sufficiently explicit

~ and graphic to convey unmistakably the sexual meaning of the euphemisms they used and
to satisfy the first criterion of our contextual analysis. The participants talked at length
about sexual and excretory activities and organs. It was apparent that the purpose of the
call was to discuss the sexual organs and activities of the caller and Spider. As a
consequence, the discussion dwelled upon the subjects of sexual organs and activities, and,
thus, satisfies the second criterion of our contextual analysis. Finally, it is apparent that the
discussion was titillating and shocking with respect to the audience. Thus, this segment
meets the third and final criterion of our contextual analysis. As a consequence, we find
that the segment appears to be patently offensive and indecent.

Segment 5 (November 26, 2001, between 7:00 and 9:00 am.); In this segment,” a male
host and two male cohorts interview or talk with two female studio guests who are
participants in a contest to win breast implant surgery. The host takes pictures of the
women and directs and describes their poses, e.g., directing one to let him “get a little more
ass,” in the picture and, later, to pose so that he can take a “front panty shot.” A discussion
of oral sex begins when the host tells Hillary, one of the women, that long fingernails like
hers “feel so good on my boys,” and that his genital area is shaved. In response, Hillary
states, “That’s good. No -- no hairs in the teeth and stuff.” She then discusses her
preference for giving, rather than getting, oral sex and declares herself to be a “big oral
queen” who could “go a half-hour solid,” before her “cheeks would hurt.” She discusses
her sexual escapades with two men, her inability to reach orgasm and her frequent
masturbation. During the ensuing discussion the host encourages Hillary to masturbate on
air while he watches and gives a “play by play.” To encourage her to cooperate, he tells her
that masturbating on air would increase her chances of winning breast implants and, when
she continues to refuse, he proposes that he or the other female guest give her manual sex
during the broadcast.

The graphic and explicit descriptions of sexual or excretory organs and activities contained
in this segment satisfy the first criterion of our contextual analysis. The repetition of these
descriptions and other sexual references throughout the segment satisfy the second criterion
of our contextual analysis. The continued and repeated explicit and graphic sexual

32 See Attachment A at 7-9.

33 See Atiachment A at 9-21.
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references clearly demonstrate the shocking and titillating nature of the material, thus
satisfying the third criterion of our contextual analysis. Consequently, we find that this
segment appears to be patently offensive and indecent.

Segment 6 (November 27, 2001, between 7:30 and 9:00 a.m.): In this segment,** a male
host and a co-host interview two female studio guests who are participants in the “Twelve
Boobs of Christmas” contest to win breast implant surgery. The segment begins with the
host taking pictures of the contestants’ “boobs” in order to “facilitate you on some new
boobies, baby.” He then begins asking about their sexual activities and is impressed that
one of the women, when giving “oral sex,” does not “recycle,” or “waste a drop.” This
segment is sufficiently explicit and graphic to meet criteria one of our contextual analysis.
Because the sexual descriptions and references are repeated throughout the segment,
criterion two of our contextual analysis is also satisfied. Finally, these sexual references
and discussions appear to be inserted only to titillate the audience. Thus, criterion three of
our contextual analysis is also met. Consequen’dy, we find that this segment appears to be
patently offensive and indecent.

Segment 7 (December 27, 2001, between 8:00 and 9:00 a.m.): In this segment,” Bubba

and two male co-hosts discuss the abnormally large size of his “balls,” while a singer and
chorus sing about his testicles in explicit and graphic detail. The euphemism, “balls,” is a
common one, generally known to mean testicles, a sexual organ. Descriptions, such as
those stating that Bubba’s “balls,” which are the size of “cantaloupes” or “coconuts,” are
“firm and meaty” with “ingrown hairs,” are sufficiently graphic to meet the first
contextual criteria. Such descriptions are repeated at length during the entire segment,
satisfying the second contextual criterion. Finally, the material satisfies the third criterion
of our contextual analysis because it is pandering, titillating and shocking to the
program’s listeners. Thus, we find that this segment appears to be patently offensive and
indecent.

10.  Based on the foregoing, we find that the material that was broadcast in these seven
segments satisfies the second prong of our two-part test and, thus, appear patently offensive, as
measured by contemporary community standards for the broadcast medium. Because we have
found these seven segments to have apparently satisfied both prongs of our two part test, we
conclude that the material contained apparently indecent speech.

11.  Each of the segments was broadcast between 6 a.m. to 10 p.m,, at a time of day
when the broadcast of indecent material is explicitly prohibited by Section 73.3999 of the
Commission’s rules. Because these segments appear to have contained indecent speech and were
broadcast at times of the day when indecent speech is proscribed, each of the broadcasts appears to
be legally actionable.® We find, therefore, that three of the captioned stations (Statxons
WXTB(FM), WRLX(FM) and WPLA(FM)) each broadcast seven apparently indecent segments,”’
in apparent willful and repeated violation of Title 18 U.S.C. § 1464 and Section 73.3999 of the

3 See Attachment A at 21-25,
35 See Attachment A at 26-28.
3 See ACT II, 58 F.3d at 660-63.

3 See supra § 4.
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Commission’s rules. In addition, the fourth captioned station (Station WCKT(FM)), which began
carrying the “Bubba the Love Sponge” program subsequent to the other stations, broadcast five of
the apparently indecent segments (Segments 3, 4, 5, 6 and 7),% also in apparent willful and repeated
violation of Title 18 U.S.C. § 1464 and Section 73.3999 of the Commission’s rules.®

B. Public Inspection File

12. Section 73.3526(e)(10) of the Commission’s rules requires broadcast licensees to
maintain a public inspection file containing specific types of information. Section 73.3526(e)(10)
specifies that, among the documents that must be included in the file, is “material having a
substantial bearing on a matter which is the subject of an FCC investigation or complaint to the
FCC...™ Such material must be retained in a station’s public inspection file pending written
notification that it may be discarded.*” Where lapses occur in maintaining the public inspection file,
neither the negligent acts nor omissions of station employees or agents, nor the subsequent remedial
actions undertaken by the licensee, excuse or nullify a licensee's rule violation.*2

13. It is beyond dispute that, on August 22, 2001, each of the four captioned stations
failed to include copies of documents relating to Mr. Vanderlaan’s First Complaint in its public
inspection file. In declarations accompanying the Second Complaint, Mr. Vanderlaan, Dr. David D.
Swanson, Kathy Taunton and Sally Oesch each states that, on that date, he or she visited one of the
captioned stations during normal business hours, reviewed its public inspection file, and determined
that the file did not contain a copy of the First Complaint or any documents related to it.”
Although Clear Channel does not dispute these allegations, it argues that Station WXTB(FM)
should be relieved of liability for its failure to have maintained the First Complaint in its public
inspection file because a copy of the document was located elsewhere in the station after the
requester had specifically identified and requested it** This argument lacks merit. The
Commission requires that such documents be maintained in the public inspection file. * The
obvious intent of the rule is to facilitate public access to such documents. To require an individual

®1d

% The First Complaint also included allegations of indecency with respect to three other broadcast segments.
We conclude that these broadcasts were not sufficiently graphic and/or sustained to be considered indecent
and are denying the First Complaint with respect to these segments.

0 47 CF.R. § 73.3526(€)(10).
41 I d.

%2 See Padre Serra Communications, Inc., 14 FCC Red 9709 (1999) (citing Gaffney Broadcasting, Inc., 23
FCC 2d 912, 913 (1970) and Eleven Ten Broadcasting Corp., 33 FCC 706 (1962)); Surrey Front Range
Limited Partnership, 71 RR 2d 882 (FOB 1992) ("Surrey").

# Second Complaint at Exhibits 1, 4. In the Declaration of Ms. Taunton, who attempted to inspect the
WXTB(FM) public file, she states that, after specifically asking to see the First Complaint, “[a] copy of the
Complaint was subsequently found in the station manager’s office and made available for my review.” Id. at
Exhibit 3. However, it is clear that, had Ms. Taunton not been aware of that document, she would not have
learned of it from her inspection of the file, the purpose behind the requirement that it be included in the file.

* Third LOI Response at 2.

*47 CF.R. § 73.3526(e)(10).
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member of the public to examine a station’s public inspection file and then identify for station
personnel what is missing from it clearly is inconsistent with the intent of the rule section.

14.  Based on the information before us, we find that the captioned licensees at each of
their respective captioned stations failed to maintain certain required documents in their respective
public inspection files, in apparent willful violation of Section 73.3526(e)(10) of the Commission’s
rules.

C. Other Allegations

15.  In his First Complaint, Mr. Vanderlaan alleges that Clear Channel engaged in
intimidating and abusive conduct after he had filed his First Complaint with the Commission, by
threatening him with legal action and complaining to his employer.”® A finding of “[i]ntimidation
or harassment of witnesses requires threats of reprisals or some other unnecessary and abusive
conduct reasonably calculated to dissuade a witness from continuing his or her involvement in a
proceeding.™ In this case, Mr. Vanderlaan presents no evidence to corroborate his claim that
Clear Channel contacted his employer and provides only a copy of his attorney’s response to a
letter purportedly from the attorney for Todd “Bubba” Clem (the host of the program) to
corroborate his allegation that he was threatened with legal action by Clear Channel. In fact, Mr.
Vanderlaan presents no evidence that the captioned licensees or Clear Channel made, or were
even aware of, the contacts about which he complains. Consequently, there is insufficient
evidence to support a finding that Clear Channel or the captioned licensees engaged in.
intimidation or abuse. Accordingly, we find no merit to this allegation.

16.  In both his First Complaint and Third Complaint and Supplement, Mr. Vanderlaan
alleges that Clear Channel promotes the use of illegal drugs.”® Consistent with the Commission’s
limited role overseeing programming content mandated by the First Amendment and Section 326
of the Act,” there is no rule or statutory provision barring a licensee from airing material
referencing drug use.® Thus, the allegations concemning this material do not warrant
enforcement action. '

IV. PROPOSED FORFEITURE

17. Having determined that the captioned licensees apparently willfully and/or
repeatedly violated 18 US.C. § 1464 and Sections 73.3999 and 73.3526(e)(10) of the
Commission’s rules, we turn to an analysis of whether, and to what extent, we should propose

% See First Complaint at 15-16.

47 See Isothermal Community College, DA 03-3638, 2003 WL 22682096 (Enf. Bur. November 14, 2003)
(citing Kaye-Smith Enterprises, 98 FCC 2d 675, 682 (1984)); Hoffart v. FCC, 787 F.2d 675 (D.C. Cir. 1986)
(citing Chronicle Broadcasting Co., 19 FCC 2d 240, 244 (1969)).

“8 See also Second Vanderlaan Reply.

Y 47US.C. §326.

%0 See, e.g., Licensee Responsibility to Review Records Before Their Broadcast, Notice, 28 FCC 2d 409

(1971), modified, Memorandum Opinion and Order, 31 FCC 2d 377 (1971), af"d sub nom, Yale Broadcasting
Co. v. FCC, 478 ¥.2d 594 (D.C. Cir. 1973), cert. denied, 414 U.S. 914 (1973).
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sanctions in this instance. Under Section 503(b)(1) of the Ac§,5 ! any person who is determined by
the Commission to have willfully or repeatedly failed to comply with any provision of the Act or
any rule, regulation, or order issued by the Commission shall be liable to the United States for a
forfeiture penalty.” In order to impose such a penalty, the Commission must issue a notice of
apparent liability, the notice must be received, and the person against whom the notice has been
issued must have an opportunity to show, in writing, why no such penalty should be imposed.”
The Commission will then issue a forfeiture if it finds by a preponderance of the evidence that the
person has violated the Act or a Commission rule, regulation or order.*

18. In the instant case, we have determined that three of the captioned stations
(Stations WXTB(FM), WRLX(FM) and WPLA(FM)) each broadcast seven apparently indecent
segments of the “Bubba the Love Sponge” program, in apparent willful and repeated violation of
Title 18 U.S.C. § 1464 and Section 73.3999 of the Commission’s rules, and that the remaining
captioned station (Station WCKT(FM)), which began carrying the “Bubba the Love Sponge”
program after the other stations, broadcast five apparently indecent segments, in apparent willful
and repeated violation of Title 18 U.S.C. § 1464 and Section 73.3999 of the Commission’s rules.
Stated otherwise, we conclude that the captioned licensees apparently violated 18 U.S.C. § 1464
and Section 73.3999 of the Commission’s rules on a total of 26 separate occasions.
Consequently, based upon our review of the record in this case, we conclude that Clear Channel,
as the parent of each licensee, is apparently liable for forfeitures based upon 26 willful and
repeated violations of our indecency rules.*’

19. The Commission’s Forfeiture Policy Statement sets a base forfeiture amount of
$7,000 for the transmission of indecent material.®® The Forfeiture Policy Statement also specifies

5147 U.8.C. § 503(b)(1).

52 47 US.C. § 503(b)(1)(B); 47 CFR. § 1.80(a)(1); see also 47 US.C. § 503(b)(1)(D) (forfeitures for
violation of 14 U.S.C. § 1464). Section 312(f)(1) of the Act defines willful as “the conscious and deliberate
commission or omission of [any] act, irrespective of any intent to violate” the law. 47 US.C. § 312(fX(1). The
legislative history to Section 312(f)(1) of the Act clarifies that this definition of willful applies to both
Sections 312 and 503(b) of the Act, HR. Rep. No. 97-765, 97" Cong. 2d Sess. 51 (1982), and the
Commission has so interpreted the term in the Section 503(b) context. See, e.g., Application for Review of
Southern California Broadcasting Co., Memorandum Opinion and Order, 6 FCC Red 4387, 4388 (1991)
(“Southern California Broadcasting Co.”). The Commission may also assess a forfeiture for violations that
are merely repeated, and not willful. See, e.g., Callais Cablevision, Inc., Grand Isle, Louisiana, Notice of
Apparent Liability for Monetary Forfeiture, 16 FCC Red 1359 (2001) (issuing a Notice of Apparent Liability
for, inter alia, a cable television operator’s repeated signal leakage). ‘Repeated” merely means that the act
was committed or omitted more than once, or lasts more than one day. Southern California Broadcasting Co.,
6 FCC Red at 4388, 9 5; Callais Cablevision, Inc., 16 FCC Red at 1362, 9 9.

3 47U.8.C. § 503(b); 47 CF.R. § 1.80(f).

5 See, e.g., SBC Communications, Inc., Apparent Liability for Forfeiture, Forfeiture Order, 17 FCC Red 7589,
7591, § 4 (2002) (forfeiture paid).

55 7 proadcasts X 3 stations (WXTB(FM), WRLX(FM) and WPLA(FM)) = 21 violations + 5 broadcasts by
WCKT(FM) = 26 violations.

38 The Commission’s Forfeiture Policy Statement and Amendment of Section 1.80 of the Rules to Incorporate
the Forfeiture Guidelines, 12 FCC Rcd 17087, 17113 (1997), recon. denied, 15 FCC Red 303 (1999)
(“Forfeiture Policy Statement”); 47 C.F.R. § 1.80(b). The Commission has amended its rules to increase the
maximum penzlties to account for inflation since the last adjustment of the penalty rates. The new rates apply
to violations that occur or continue after November 13, 2000. See Amendment of Section 1.80(b) of the
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that the Commission shall adjust a forfeiture based upon consideration of the factors enumerated
in Section 503(b)(2)(D) of the Act, 47 U.S.C. § 503(b)(2)(D), such as “the nature, circumstances,
extent and gravity of the violation, and, with respect to the violator, the degree of culpability, any
history of prior offenses, ability to pay, and such other matters as justice may require.””’

20. Based upon our review of the record before us, we believe that an upward
adjustment to the statutory maximum of $27,500 for each of the 26 apparent indecency violations is
warranted. The large number of apparent violations here, combined with Clear Channel’s repeated
broadcasts in the past of apparently indecent material over multiple stations licensed to its
subsidiaries, evidences a pattern of violations that justifies a proposed forfeiture of the statutory
maximum.”®

21.  Because we find that Clear Channel, through its subsidiary captioned licensee
companies, apparently violated 18 U.S.C. § 1464 and Section 73.3999 of the Commission’s rules
on 26 separate occasions, and that each such violation is subject to an apparent forfeiture in the
amount of $27,500, we conclude that Clear Channel is apparently liable for a forfeiture in the
amount of $715,000 for willfully and repeatedly broadcasting indecent material during various
segments of the “Bubba the Love Sponge” program over the captioned stations. Particularly in light
of Clear Channel’s history of violations of the indecency rules, we also take this opportunity to
reiterate our recent admonition (which took place after the behavior at issue here) that serious
multiple violations of our indecency rule by broadcasters may well lead to the commencement of
license revocation proceedings.”® We expect Clear Channel in particular to take this admonition
seriously.

22.  We also have previously determined that the four captioned stations failed to
maintain certain required documents in their respective public inspection files, in apparent willful
violation of Section 73.3526(e)(10) of the Commission’s rules. Based upon the factors
articulated in Section 503(b)(2)(D) of the Act and the base forfeiture amount specified in the
Forfeiture Policy Statement for violations of the our public inspection file rules, we conclude that
a proposed forfeiture is warranted in the base forfeiture amount of $10,000 for each of the four
apparent willful violations of Section 73.3526(e)(10) of the Commission’s rules, for a total of
$40,000.

Commission’s Rules and Adjustment of Forfeiture Maxima to Reflect Inflation, 15 FCC Red 18221 (2000).

57 The maximum forfeiture amount for a single violation for the broadcast of apparently indecent material is
$27,500. 47 CF.R. § 1.80(b)(1).

38 See, e.g., AMFM Radio Licenses, LLC (WWDC(FM)), Notice of Apparent Liability for Forfeiture, FCC 03-
233 (rel. Oct. 2, 2003) (forfeiture paid); Citicasters Co. (KEGL(FM)), Notice of Apparent Liability for
Forfeiture, 16 FCC Red 7546 (Enf. Bur. 2001) (forfeiture paid); Citicasters Co. (WXTB(FM)), Forfeiture
Order, 15 FCC Red 25453 (2000) (forfeiture paid); Citicasters Co. (KSJO(FM)), Notice of Apparent Liability
for Forfeiture, 15 FCC Red 19095 (Enf. Bur, 2000) (forfeiture paid); Citicasters Co. (KSJO(FM)), Notice of
Apparent Liability for Forfeiture, 15 FCC Red 19091 (Enf. Bur, 2000) (forfeiture paid); Citicasters Co.
(WXTB(FM)), Forfeiture Order, 15 FCC Red 11906 (2000) (forfeiture paid).

¥ See Infinity Broadcasting Operations, Inc.(WKRK-FM), Forfeiture Order, 18 FCC Red 6915, 6919, § 13
(2003); see also AMFM Radio Licenses LLC (WWDC-FM), Notice of Apparent Liability for Forfeiture, 18
FCC Red 19917, 416 (2003) (forfeiture paid); Infinity Broadcasting Operations, Inc.(WNEW(FM), Notice of
Apparent Liability for Forfeiture, 18 FCC Red 19954, § 19 (2003) (response pending).
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V. ORDERING CLAUSES

23.  ACCORDINGLY, IT IS ORDERED, pursuant to Section 503(b) of the
Communications Act of 1934, as amended, and Section 1.80 of the Commission’s rules,” that Clear
Channel Communications, Inc., the parent company of each of the above—captioned licensees, is
hereby NOTIFIED of its APPARENT LIABILITY FOR FORFEITURE in the total amount of
Seven Hundred Fifty-Five Thousand Dollars ($755,000), for wxllfully violating 18 U.S.C. § 1464
and Sections 73.3999 and 73.3526(c)(10) of the Commission’s rules.”’

24. IT IS FURTHER ORDERED, pursuant to Section 1.80 of the Commission’s rules,
that within thirty (30) days of the release of this Notice, Clear Channel Communications, Inc.
SHALL PAY the full amount of the proposed forfeiture against it or SHALL FILE a written
statement seeking reduction or cancellation of the proposed forfeiture.

25.  Payment of the forfeiture may be made by mailing a check or similar instrument,
payable to the order of the Federal Communications Commission, to the Forfeiture Collection
Section, Finance Branch, Federal Communications Commission, P.O. Box 73482, Chicago, Hlinois
60673-7482. The payment MUST INCLUDE the FCC Registration Numbers (“FRN") referenced
above and also should note the NAL/Account Number referenced above.

© 26.  The response, if any, must be mailed to William H. Davenport, Chief, Investigations
and Hearmgs Division, Enforcement Bureau, Federal Communications Commission, 445 12
Street, S.W, Room 3-B443, Washington D.C. 20554 and MUST INCLUDE the NAL/Acct. No.
referenced above.

27.  The Commission will not consider reducing or canceling a forfeiture in response to
a claim of inability to pay unless the respondent submits: (1) federal tax returns for the most recent
three-year period; (2) financial statements prepared according to generally accepted accounting
practices (“GAAP”); or (3) some other reliable and objective documentation that accurately reflects
the respondent’s current financial status. Any claim of inability to pay must specifically identify the
basis for the claim by reference to the financial documentation submitted.

28.  Requests for payment of the full amount of this Notice of Apparent Liability under
an installment plan should be sent to: Chief, Revenue and Receivables Operations Group, 445 12th
Street, S.W., Washington, D.C. 20554.%

29.  Under the Small Business Paperwork Relief Act of 2002, Pub L. No. 107-198, 116
Stat. 729 (June 28, 2002), the FCC is engaged in a two-year tracking process regarding the size of
entities involved in forfeitures. If Clear Channel qualifies as a small entity and if it wishes to be
treated as a small entity for tracking purposes, it should so certify to us within thirty (30) days of

®47CFR. §1.80.

8! Station WXTB(FM), Station WRLX(FM) and Station WPLA(FM) shall each be allocated the sum of Two
Hundred Two Thousand Five Hundred Dollars ($202,500.00) for six indecency violations and one public
inspection file violation (6 x $27,500 = $192,500 + $10,000 = $202,500). The sum of One Hundred Forty-
Seven Thousand Five Hundred Dollars ($147,500.00) is allocated to Station WCKT(FM) for five violations of
the Commission’s indecency rules and one violation of the Comifiission’s public inspection file rule [5 x
$27,500 = $137,500 + $10,000 = $147,500). .

6 See 47 CFR. § 1.1914,
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this NAL, either in its response to the NAL or in a separate filing to be sent to the Investigations and
Hearings Division. The certification should indicate whether Clear Channel, including its parent
entity and its subsidiaries, meet one of the definitions set forth in the list provided by the FCC's
Office of Communications Business Opportunities (“OCBQ”) set forth in Attachment B of this
Notice of Apparent Liability. This information will be used for tracking purposes only. Clear
Channel’s response or failure to respond to this question will have no effect on its rights and
responsibilities pursuant to Section 503(b) of the Communications Act. If Clear Channel has
questions regarding any of the information contained in Attachment B, it should contact OCBO at
(202) 418-0990.

30.  Accordingly, IT IS ORDERED, that the First Complaint, Second Complaint and
Third Complaint and Supplement filed by Douglas Vanderlaan ARE GRANTED to the extent
indicated herein, AND ARE OTHERWISE DENIED, and the complaint proceeding IS HEREBY
TERMINATED.

31.  ITIS FURTHER ORDERED, that copies of this Notice of Apparent Liability For Forfeiture
shall be sent, by Certified Mail Retumn Receipt Requested, to Mr, Kenneth E. Wyker, Senior Vice President &
General Counsel, Clear Channel Communications, Inc., c/o Clear Channel Worldwide, 200 East Basse Road,
San Antonio, Texas 78209-8328, with a copy to Clear Channel’s counsel, John M. Burgett, Esq., at Wiley,
Rein & Fielding, LLP, 1776 K Street, N.W., Washington, D.C., 20006, and to Mr. Douglas Vanderlaan, 8114
Parkridge Circle South, Jacksonville, Florida 32211, with a copy to his counsel, Arthur V. Belendiuk, Esq., at
Smithwick & Belendiuk P.C., 5028 Wisconsin Avenue, N.W., #301, Washington, D.C. 20016.

FEDERAL COMMUNICATIONS COMMISSION

Marlene H. Dortch
Secretary
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Attachment A

Excerpts From WPLA(FM) Program Transcript
Provided As Exhibit 2 to April 3, 2002,
Complaint of Douglas Vanderlaan
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Attachonent A
BUBBA THE LOVE SPONGE
TRANSCRIPT
Radio Station: WELA-FM, Cuilahan, Florida
Material Broadeast: The Bubba The Love Sponge Moming Show
-SEGMENT It uly . £:30-8:

Mele Announcerr MA
Shaggy Voice: sy
Scooby Doa Voice: 8D
Fet Albert Voice:  FA
Mele Friend Voies: MF
George Jetson Voice: G)
Chipmunk Voices: CV
Alvin Chipmunk: ~ AC

MaA

Z 89528 2B2YQ

Inaudible. Music begins playing. Spoof commercial weaves i,

~thought cartoons are jurt for kids. Well you need to check otn Castoon
Werwork on Fridey nights. Provacative adult caroons 10 help you get vour
freak on.

Mausic - Theme from ‘Seooby Doo* cartoon, “Scoobedy Doo, Hey Scooby,
Where are you?™

Hey Sco0h, ] don't know about you, but I'm jonesin' for someihing real bad.
A Scooby Snack?

No Scoob, 1 was thinking sumethiog & fittle betier than o Scooby Snack.
A crack yock?

‘Oh yesh Scocb, a crack rock sounds like, totally awesome right now, But

like, 1 don't have tmy dough fox the dope.

You could refinssdible)f Gnmodible)ek.

What sre you saying Scoob?

Ru(inpusdible) (inaudiblelick.

We could su(bleepkk d{bleep)ick for crack rock, Scooby, you're 1 genius!
Whao hoo bee_ .

(To music) That's right, put the kids 1o bed. ‘These canoons sre for grows-
nps. Jsn') that right Fat Albeat?

What's up Fer Aloert?
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Atlpchment 4

Fa Don'tcall me Fat Albert anymore. From now on, I'm Phat-(whoop sound)
Tiddy-Daddy.

MF What mekes you 5o bad, Phat Diddy-Daddy?

FA Well, for yoos informarion (whoop sound), Jam ight, Jennifer Lopss was
s(Glecp)ing Diddy-Daddy’s (bieep)ck.

MF Look-ba-cut Fat Ba-Alber1?

Fa 1 014 you, that's Phat Diddy-Daddy.

MF Lonk-bi-oct Phat Ba-Diddy Ba-Doddy. Puff Be-Deddy's dubing e-ba drivee-
by.
Sounds of shots firing end cexgin background

MF Oh-bs no-bat P-Ba-Diddy killed Phat-Ba-Diddy Ba-Daddy.
Uncleor jingle.

MA Caroon network's Fridey nights. Aduh cartoons with adult desizes,
Music - Theme from ‘The Jetsons' cartoon. “Meer George Jetson. ™

GJ Great vews Jane, 1don’t nced Viagss snymore. 1 got & Spacely Sprocket
(oleer)ck ring. Just one flip of b switth froink sound effecy. .. (inavdidle
sound effecsy)... Help, Janel Cut this crazy thing!

MA {Music returnst Cartoons after-houst on Fridey nights.

cv Alvin, why do you Jook so frustrated?

AC I heven't been laid in slmont 5ix weeks.

cv Well, ytns know whaz 1be problem is?

AC ‘Whot? .

cv T's b f(bleep)cking pussy music we play.

AC What do you mean?

CcV

If we wanna get the bitches, we have 10 play more kick ass music,
AC Like what?

cv Check this sh(bleep) ow, Alvin,

"' (T music) Suck on my (issudible) Chipmunk (bleep)s, Pw’em in'your mouth
and (bleeppck’em, fithy chipmunk-whore, Suck on my (insudible)
Chipmunk (bleep)s. They iaste Jike pistachios, They’re warm angd fuezy.
Suck my (bleep).

MA {Mausic returns) Cartoons with balls. Every Friday aight 4t 10 o*clock on
Cartoon Nerwork. ‘
Cui 1o dise fockey, i1t bacRgyound

MH

(Insudible} jux told me there's some asshole an line...(breaks 1o music)
Recording jumps.
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EEGMENT 2:

Anmouncet: AN
Answering Machine: FM (femalr)
Model Caller: ML (male)
Recepioniat: FR {femalt)

MC |

MC

MC

ME

MC

Federal Communications Commission FCC 04-17

{To music) {imudidle) get your ¢ry-baby whiny ass (inaudible), this is the
Bubbs Radio Nawork.

FPhone ringing,
{On maciine). Hi you have reached Kate with Strnacione underweas models

search hotline. 1'm sorry 1 can’t 1ske your call night now, but if you leave

your natne, umber and 3 brief message, '] ges back 1o you as soon ns 1 can.
Thank vou finachine besp).

Hello Eb, pick up. Somebady pick up. Hello. Helio, Kate. Canl sprak to
Kute, please, thiz iz vrgent. -

Struaure Model Search, Jennifes spraking, can ) help you?
Yes, ] was uh, trying to get a-hold of Knte. 1 saw this thing in the paper that

you're conducting an underwens model search and, snd I vould—) nesd 1o
find out baw to enter, "cause 1 am definitely your man.

Well [ can help you, sir. What information do you nead — just how to entec?

Well, yes, cause, 1 mean, I've done a lot of eude modeling and underseas
modeling, and I've gonts tcll vou, the response 1 get —its just phenomenal.

So, vh, g, give tee some damils sbout yourself.

Well-uh, ] hove 2 preny good body, you know, I'm soned. slighily smuscular,
tan, wash-boerd stormech, 21l thay. But frankly, my best stiritwie is—is my
penis,

Mm hmm.

1 mean, 1 don't wanng sound like an ego-maniac, but my 8{bleep)ek is 8 work
of ant. )

¥ mean, 15 ke the hangd of God came down and--
Mz bmm, ..

and rolded the perfect d{bleepiek cuns clay and muck it on my body. You
atch my drift here?

UhI-1 do. Eh, however, it's not nude modeling. s en underweyr, ub, itk 4n
undervear-uk, modeling show.

1 mean my d{bleep)ek should be banging in the f(bleep)cking Louvie —
Oh heh, .

right next 1o the Mona Lisa.
Well -
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MC
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Tuis nvy S beficf that every perzon in the world shauld be able to se2 my
d{leeplck.

Sir, 1 don't tetlly nted (0 hear that,

As 8 matter of fact, | have an B by 10 glossy of my penis.

Uk wh.

T could fax thatto you =~

Ne. No. You don't need 10 do that sir, You can just send us, vh, 3f you have
um vh snothes, uh, just 2 shot of, vy, just your body clothed, tut'll de.

Well you don't peem to grasp the megnitude of-

Mm hmm

of my peri)'s gorgecusness.

Well —

1 mean, J-ub, it's the perfect penis.

™Mm tomn,

Every inch, every, every f{bleep)ing. cvery - every ounce of f{blecp)cking:
cofblecp) purple Gnaudible) of it.

Um, yeah. Siz, that's way 106 much information, and that’s not eppropriate.
Tts Yike & Van Gogh or & Picesso, 1 mean—

Sit, Y'm sure it is.

Imagine what it would look like in 2 prir of Structure vnderwear.

Mm kmm. Glotious, T'm sure, bt

1 mean, 1 could stan & Rbleepieking cult with this (bleep). Billions of people

worshipping my penis. The Reverend Sung Yong Moon didn't heve a
d{tlecp)ck like this, 10 1ell you that ight now.

You know what sir, § {inaudibie} tha much information. 11 think that, you
Loow—

You know, we could protably just wrap this thing up ight now. Just give me
the job. } mean, I'm yous mag,

Mrm bnm. Well, you jurt steed 10 send in the proper infoymarion, not the
information that you're 1elling me.

Wel), now look sweetie pie. Did you think there's snother man in America
who can lifl # 25-pound weight with kis penis.

Qsughing)

1can tie a 25-peumnd (inaudible) plate to my (bleep) and do 13 repe,

Mm hmm.

Do you vnderstand, uh = do you uaderssand what I'm maying? 1 got—1 got
fu(bleep)cking musclcs in my c{blecp)ek.
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Aflachment A
FR, Oh my God.
MC Do yau know anybody else who's got muscles down there?
FR Ne, nol don't. And = )
MC 1meanifl flex ry pends I con splhit my falbleep)cking pans like the
Incredible Hulk,
TR (Lavgh) You know what, J=1 think that's reaBy grest information. But
sgain, wo'rs pot gonna need that.
NC ‘Well, I'l do i right now. 3'1l put the phone between my jeans, 1'm gonnt
flex my d(bleep)ck fike Arnold Schwaszencgger, okay, then you ~ hello?
Rello? :
MH {Lavgh) 8:14 & the Bubba Radfio Newwork,
Break inrecording,
SEGMENT 3: v 14, 2001, 7.00-9.00
Male Hom: MH
Seeond Malks: SM
Third Mgls: ™
Femsle Caller: FC
“NED:" ND
Tape cuts in op salking.
MH (n2udible) on the fizzack shizzack of the plinaudible) or the pr{inaudibie}e
plaificat...
BM (Laughing) 1'd like to see hrow that”s wrinen in w. QF uh, in the books.
™ Yeak.
MH 1 wouldn’t wanna get elhowed. 1 mean—you know, the guy's got some
RPM's going and 21l of a sudden - WACK! .
™ (Laughing) : :
M Again, 179 dollers—get & five dise {inaudiblc} Toshibs DVD player—
MH Righe,
§M You cen it at home, and uh (inaudible) 10 your henrt’s coment,
MH Yeah, wax that carrot il day long.
™M {Lrughing)
MH

Let me ask you & question. Now, when you're in the general pepulation,
YOu'TE A0i-—YOU'TE NOT in & private booth, but instead you'se in one of those—
uh, you know—you're in the theatre portion, with of course, ch—ibe

complimemary seat between you. 1mean uh, do people-uh, st doing it
there wo?
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Oh well, bh—yexh, Yeah.
Yo

Oh yesh

Oh well hald on now.

(Lavghing) Ohho... vh...

What's going on here?

Swy it o't an?

Ned, 12l me you don’t go 1o the (rundible).

've been there on oceasion. 1 prefer the thests 10 the booth
Why? Fot the voyeurism aspect?

TUrh-yes. Yeah, sometimes 1 can get w-round of applruse from axcther patror,
$o=you know, ks-uh—kind of 2 show off thing.

You meen a guy—Ilike anciher guy will put vou oves?

Qb yeah. The (inavdilJe) have ro stop what their doing snd just get~
Whoa

Weli—hased on volume or besed on distance?

Just on—vhe=siyie,

Performance?

Paformance.

Presemmion?

Facisl expressions.

Style?

Oh, you knaw, its—yow know, everyone's got their owa style,

Wrell--holf o new. Phis Ned puts himself ovet, when Ned's doing it, Ned
Goes (insudibie), you know, most people... Wed, Ned - acch oaoh.
Cooh,

Convulsige {insudible).

Mmm hmm. Theve's—there's quiet mat—yon know, gusturbatess, and then
there’s—you know, loud masturbators—

Yes
And Ned happened 1o be the laner,
Looks ke I'm teving ¢ grand ma) seipore.

Give us an csample, like—you know, maybe just the words you use—
msvhe—go tike “oh god.”

(Laughing)
Well—its ub-—you just—you always start off slowly-
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Well—J U3} give you the—{siarts a drumming riwiin)
{Acting out} Obyesh.,, vhmag,., ‘
(Britf drwmming) Now you'll beateeyou'll sg¥ that?

Oh God... Yeah. Peaple—you knaw, thag's what those Buys afre these for
Aaywyy. They wainns ses dshow,

(Drumning gew faster)

Oh—it's coming Oh mas. Ob yeah. Oh-—come on, RPM's going—Oh

Gud. Oooch.., (insudible)... Gooooh, Oooch—its coming. Qoooh—man.
Onoh—(intudible)... conctntrstion... e

Sweet Jemst,

Oh—von know, gorta (inaudible). Hmmmm. (insudible} Yeeath What do
vou say there, sparky,-~whet's up? Aesh, oob yesh, ob God, Herel go spain!
Oocooh yeah, I'm gonn ga—ah oh oh oh (increasing volume and drumming
thythm) asesh (screaming)y—ooooh Whew. Aalooooo.

Craxy ass Ned.
God

Five in front of the 10p of the hour,

Nov g D0-9:
MH

Setomd M)t Voice; SM (sametimes indistinguishable)
Third Male Voice:  TM (sometimes ndistinguishabte)
Femdle Calter: FC

RIS EE R

{Recording begins amidst discussion)

--glecp with Spider. And sce | can tell you enyrhing you wanny know about
him,

How long's his peois?

Uuh, about six inches,

13 Hepc Ve svedivan?

11's medium, yeah

At best  And whal—-whar position did you guys steep i,
O, Jet me just te¥l you this, he's e jack-cabbit, thet's 3l ke is.
Tgen

{(eigghing)

Fop-on, hop-off.

(isughing)

50 it wasa'{ very long?
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No, um, bt 3uid something about having pronste infections or something—-
Uproar of laugher.
Ges Spider—get Spider on the phone snd ask hime-

He change—he chenged his phbone numbee. We don" even have .
Ok mau.

(Laugk) (inaudible over chers)

So how long—and ~—snd—and~—when he banged ya, how long did it lap?
*Boul two minutes.

You'se kidding me? -

1'm not joking.

What potitien, from behind?

No, first it was missionary. Afier | pave bim, um--
Right, oral

You know. Yeah,

Yov—you gave him oral?

See and then, like--

Did he give you orgf? God I hope net.
Muddied—taugh) Oh...

Wha do you mean you hope not?

'3 just mot good going down on ¢ heavier sct chick on oral. There's some
cheese down there.

Yau know what, he didn’t even tell You vhe whole story on why I'm hesvy,
And he gidn'ttell vom thin § wm losing weight now,

Break 1 1ape,
Kecordmg resumes.

1 wag heavy becanse af my illness. 3t was called pn esting discrder,
Yenh, eating disorders are su illness {inaudible).
No, no, mo,

10 was called (inaudible~<hewing) Buffet three times & duy, with & tide order
of Wendy's fiiat.

Spider waa trying 1o make sure that T mie every day.
Loughing.

He did a~he obvioutly did 2 good job.

He was trying—he was rying 1o pump you up a Jittke bit?
(Laughing)

He was like, fatien that rurkey for Thanksgiving.
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iproar of lougiver.
(Amidst the laughing) You guys don's undersiand.

I'm gonma get this brezst nioe and=- Cap somebody check Breni, he's having
s convolsion over here?

Contimupus laughier.
Somebody check Brem, he's having & convulsion.
Deep inhale.
Easy, Brem
Laugiing, inkales, snorting, eic.
Why—was he rying 10 pump you up » litile bit”
(sughing)
Arse van like 3 Ball Park Plank—Frank you pump when we bang ya?
Flump when you bang her?
1"s 2 Bal Park Fronk—is, youv pump when you bang her, How big are you?
Whar does it matier?
Well, cause I-=1 just wanna get & (inaudiblej-
She’e big, I've seen her.
(Lavghing)
How big would you say, Spice?’
Uk, I'd say sbout 250, 260,

Okay, 50 she's a big gitl. Yeah,

Tha's not too bad.

(Langhing} What?

Hm., What—

What are you 1a¥king about (maudible)?

1'm ving she—she needs (o Jose is & husdred pounds.
“Yeah, no big deal.

A tondred pounds, man.
That's not 100 bad.

Alright, sund by, mo—more of tis—more of this~

(In backgrovnd, crying) I'm sonyy ..(beeping sound). .. snd T just want you 1o
know thatl...

End of 1ape.
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Mrle Host: MH . .
Second Male Voice: 5M {1ometimeas indistinguishable)
Third Male Voioe:

T™ (somectimes indistingvishabie)
Female “Hilary™  FH
Female “Sarah™: FS

{Recording begins amidst discussion}

M . That is 8 nice booty

MH - tha—that’s points against you. 1'm gonng be honest with you,

5] Okny, okay.

™ Nooo.

MR Unless you'se eniing me call=—unless we're having phone sex hster tonight,
You kenow, you're--you e solidly in like 1enth place sight now.

FH Lavgh,

MH Alripht, ¢-c-can va et ] pet a little bit more of the 395, Oh tight there, yesh,
veah.

MH Now cap ] pt » ftox shot, because the frome shor (ineudible). Yeah right
there. Ohoman. Whoa,

SM Sez Hilary, we'te professionals.

FH Fair encugh.

1.5 See We're Yike the ice-men. We've seen it before,

FH That'ste.

MR This does nething for me, Hilery. You don't understand, you know—I mean
this is—1 mesm, you know, Nat ke 1 sanna go home ynd take these piciures
mnd masturbste off 10 you.

™ Mo, yeah, woe,

M No, 5o thet would be 1orally an of the question,

FH Qsughing)

M (Laughing) Net you.

MH See ] wanny-—] wanna get e from pasty shot From you Hilary.

tH Yaou know why I haven't done fram-—font panty shots?

MH Ub-~by the way, I love yout finger auils. Oh bu--they~They feel so good oo
my boys, by the vay.

13 Oh yesh,

M Good God, {laugh). '

MHISM Yealy. (inavdible), chill out, (innudible), vou're throwing & wet blarket on
(insudible).
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No, I Grandible).

(Lavghing)

{insudible), they would, 1mean, thar-—that's one of my fevorites.
The mils on the boys?

O yeah, nails on the boys,

Exactly.

Exscily, See—she knpws.

Oh, you'rc done baby. You could--

{Telking. in beckground, muffled)

What's that?

{Insudible) shaved nght?

Chyeeh. J'm ponne—(inavdible) my bayr, yesh,
(Talking, in backgrownd, mugfled)

Dots he—dnes he shave’em?

Oh yegh.

Have you seen shaved boys before?

Yegh. {muflled =) oh yesh.

My boys tte—my whole dea) dawn these is shaved. 1 got the cleanest
presemmion intown. (insudibile)

That’s good. Thai's good. No—uo hairs in the reeth and stuff,
(Morning) Right, Bgin.

So why are you—why are you—why—ute yous—are you good at oral? Are
you 1 big oral queen’? '

Yeah, I'm # big oral queen. | used 1o have my tongue pierced, And thenl

100k that o but—yesh. 1lLike giving, 1don’t 1eally enjoy gettin® though,
Really?

Yeah,

You'd rather just give and give and give?
T&--1'6 tber give — vesh

For like an hour—an hout nonstop, Can you--
Can you go—ean you go 8 helf-hour solid?
Yeab but my cheeks wonld hurt.

Right.

They staxt huntivp up in here you know

Mmm bmm,

I'N-~T'1 give you & ittle bit of rese.
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Wow, That's my siyle  God ihat’s nice.
Yeih,

We can—we can go for oral of » I—we can do like 2 half-hour imtercourse
{iaudible).

Yeah but she's definitely (inaudible) more sad more (inawdible).
{Inaudible)

She's (inaudible)—she’s (insudibic) more and more Graudible)
She doesa’t like genring it, but she likes gijving it

{Insudible) 1 like thar

(Loughing)

I ot first dibs on her by the way, okay? ] just wan everybody 10 know thar i
got first cibs on her Bremt 5o don't yau be Galling her toduy.

(Laugh)

H Brent calls you before | do. hang up on him, okey?

Yeah (Jaughing), will do.

That's reslly furny.

It's me, Brent,.. )
Make sure you yov—yeah Brent ande—don’t 11y 10 be Bubba sither.
Can X come ovor wnd (inaudible),

BeBuhba

(Mimicking) Bello, iv’s Bubba. How you doing?
(Laughing)

(Sl mimicking) (insudibit)

So—you dox’t—{inandible).

QLaughing)

Conversation fodes owt Breok.

Recording brging amidst conversation,
Yaah.

Onzudible), tell the truh:

1 can briing Geotge i hare for trunth in trosdessting (naudible).
Did you experiment in high school?

Nt in high schodk, about six months ago.

Ch, oksy, no1 in high schoel.

Yeash--{inaudible)

Bave you—have You ever ex--experimented with a chick before?
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Mot with a chick, na.

What 60 you mean, not with 2 chick? I mean, cbviously you've experimentad
with goys before,

With guys yeab,

There' s—thare’ s—there’s twg equations.~

With 1 couple guys, yeah,

{Inaudible)

Oh you've had two guys before? Let's 1tk about thar...
Yeah,
Wi~-wait hold on, vou've hud 1wo guvs before?
At one time, yeah

Ya did?

Yeeh

Hmmm, 7 Dool.

Can we 1alk sbout 1hat?

Yeah we can kinde taik ebout that.

Where—when dig it happen? How long ago?

1 was eighteen. 1 was 2 Feshman in college...
Right. And you batged two guyt togerher a1 ance?
What schonl did you—what school did yau go 10?

Well {—nocsh.,. T lived in Hickery, Nonh Carolina, and then 1 went to
coliege in Greenshoro.

Right. Right. So snyway (inndible)

Sa 1 wem to UNC Greensboro,

Was it yous boyfriend an< one of his fricnds? Wax that what it was?
No, It wasn't w boyfijend, neithet ont of them.

Two Strom—1wo siTengs guys?

Well one of them §'d kinda been bafxging for a while, you know.

Right.

And then the other one was jutt kind of & randam that got thrown ino the mix
that night,

How—haow ¢id thet happen?

1 don't knowr.

Age you telling the truth, or we you making this up?

No, I swear. No, no, I really swear.

Were they—weic they doing it af the same time? Or did they ke Wwmas?

1795



Federal Communications Commission

Adachmet A

ZHEAENENELEERERED EEEFEFEREELY

§§§§

FCC 04-17

Yeah, sheohuely!
They'd take turns.
Nol It was the same time oa you  1know it was
No—no 1 really wasn't) 11 was—-
Tt wasn't one from 1he from, one from the back?
Not I'd probably explode.
Tsn't that what you wanted?
What—both of them &t the same vime?
Right.
Um, kind of
Were you drunk?
Yes, 1 was drunk.

Absolutely, Of course you're going 1o hide behind that (insudible),..but
don’t believe that (imauditie}). :

Uuh...1hat's okay... So they took tums wh?

Right?

Yeah.

How—how long did it 1ast? Was & a pretty—an al) night crgy (inaudible)?
Um, it was 2 yood hour at Jewat,

How many otgasms did you have?

You know, I've never hiad an orgasm during sex,

WHATTY

Welleeniow hoid on. That’s—1hal’s almost & challenge for me now,
QLaugh)

Yon've neves had an orgasm from sex.
I swickc. '

You've never had an orgtaimn before?
And it makes me 5o damn mad.

You've never—have you ever had ene through oral?
Ne.

No,
Well yeah, she doesn't ke oral,

Well~yermshe fo—yeah she—she hates onl
Wow.

€0 you~—you never—yon know why? Becruse you've never had a guy
property simulate your g-spot. That’s why.
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1 mean, that could be,

Yeah

That's—no, no—ihat’s note

Bua ] think its cause } mastusbate 100 moch,

How—how often do you masturbate?
Usspity--

Be honest.
She fooks like & masturbatar.
Usually once 2 day, Yesh-- {'m s masturbaor.
Uich man,
Now—now 80 you do it wilh & vibrastor? Or do you use just yout fingers?
{insudible amongst szlves) (laugh)
Just my bands,
Really?
Water—{o you use the water tick?
Yeah, d0 you uge--
Na.
A ot of women do 1he watcr deal nowv-acdays. That*s—F 1ends 1o be very
popular.
No... po. ,
Ses, Ldon't— don't kee that e 2ll. 1'd sather ute x 10y.
Ginsudible}
Wow,
['d vather uze my hand.
Hovw=-haw bout you, Sarah? How ofienh 30 you masiushate?
U, ot very often, becsuse, J«-1 get & lot af bootie.
Ob—obviously you got George ermmd (insudible), right?
Yes, exsotly. But 11 dp heve two 10ys, 30
Right.
So, 1 3o, when he'x not around.
Now, Hilary &¢ you vk — g6 you use 2 1oy at J|?
] have a 10y. Butl don'y really enjoy it.
She—1he's s hand maswrbawor.
Right.
Yeah Pma hend mesturbator,
She—she's 2 hand queen,
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Wow. Now see—and you do it shoin every day?
Yah

Yau sy you do it abowt every day?

And sometimes 3 gel going one day and 1 might go severs] imes that day.
Manm oooh, {tighing}

What's the most fimes, recently thet you mastwibated in one day?
Oh muybe like, seven or cight.

In ont day?

Yeah. | {sighing).

Whoa (sugh).

Yeah

Now, can vou have ew orgasm evesy 1ime?

Yeeh,

Hub—see that's the beauiy of being n chigk. This is—ph—

See bs guys, we Can1—1there’s no way we could o seven or vight (imes
{insudible-—talking over one another).

Yeah, we can't Grwudible). Three would be—uhe—1he most.
Right,

1 mean | can do, like thiny seconds in berween em,
Czn you do one nght now—ckn you do one sright now?
Nao. imrudibie)

Well, you could—vons could, but yon won't.

Waell 1 could, but 1 won®s. Exactly.

Why won't you?

Caure 1'm 100 nervous,

Come on.

I"ve nevet done # in front of other prople.

How bout we—haw hout we, uh, close the sudio and U'd just brand you in
hese

No, iluush)

Well—how bout we put you in & ro0om by youeself-
In whose room?

O—aover the 1elephone, snd you go it?
Ganghing) 1 don’t know if § could do tha,

Now see that would be—but that wobld be landmark, (inxudible)
That would bel

Okey then. L mean—and—
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We could put you in Bubby's office..

1 could—] could put you in my office. You've been in my office. 1 could
shutes

T've been in there,
Ckay 1 canw
1 love the carpet, by the way.

Thank you very much. Ang vou're buck could be hiing thar carpet here
500N

(Laughing)

But what I'm saying is—that you can get onmy couch. You can call me over

the telephone. 1"l lock the door. You koow there's no windows or anything
in there?

Right.
And you can—you know... ARer all honey, if you wouldn’y bave thrown me

the bone in saying you masiurbate 2 Joi, how-—would 1 even have asked it of
you? No,

Right.

Tha s 1tue.

You offcred the infarmation.

5 did,

So, would there be any wiy | could put you in there?

I don't knaw. Dors i1 increase my chances of getting booba?
Well—} think 20, it does, yeah.

You 1hnk $07?

3 think—1 think it’s 3 fine equstion a3 1o whs wins and who dossn’t win.
Yeeh, we have 16 work out & deal on that,

Uk, wtll, pottibly, veah,

Oh, okay.

So, 1 mean, would you do thay for me? | mean, and you know what
{imudivle)-

Petbaps.

Pve been doing this for a lang Jong time, and I'}} ke able o 1el i it"s fake or
not, Cause I've been doing this for = long Jopg iime.

Yeah

1 knovwese

Bt I'm not moisy when [ deit,
Not st alf?
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Mo, T mesn there's no—there's no-

Deep breathing from ynknown svarce,

Well vo, a0t really. 1t's mare Jike 2 hold my breath until it happent, und then,
you know, '

VWell—ckay, when it finally—shen it finally—when it finslly happens what
do you do? | meap--

T jost lay there end bremhe,

Soit'd be—you'te trving T0 say we wouldn't get anvthing out of it ar a®
You might—no, no. Cavse there's no need 10 be vocal when there's—

See that's~—stethat's why you'd have 10 do #t in the siudip where | could
warch. Cause I could—=] could give play by play then,

Wel}, (Jaughing)
Aazh, sec she—she thought she could get owt of it (inaudible).
{laughing), no—! wasn't—] wash't irying 10 g2 out of it, I'm just seying.

I'm jugt saying Hilary, 1 mean you know, the bottorn ling is—Maybe Surgh
can do it foy you?

(Lwughing)

1 mtan, she's bl

(insudible}

But U'm not, no.

Yeah (insudible) ineo thie wap,

Would you be willing 1o do that or no?
No. (laughing)

You gotta—, keep=—keep going in this line.,.
Howbout § do 7 Howbom Tdai?
(Sl Jsughing), no. Mo way.

How bout ) do it for you?

No cando.

Why not?

{ingudible)

Now aze, you're single?

(lonutible)

I'm single.

Right?

Yeah.

{imwdible) Right. And you know—obviously, you know. Yo.'.¢ stttacted to
me, 1 can tell=s litde spaskie i your eye.
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{Laugh)
You like g—you like 1 sirong man ke me
Right,
Nice wager and eammer,
Bxactly.
Large penis.
Exsctiy.
Clenn shaven,
Right.
Solid, raggad, @an.
Mmm hmm, (engh)
{Laughing)
1 1 conld do it for you alsnoxt.
AlmoR,

‘Well | meati—]—have you—it it beyond the —is it beynnd the renim of

having a guy mastorbate you wha——when vou llke him? Hag it ever
happened? You gotta come al OTRALM. ..

Yeah

Right.

{Inscdibic) the orgasm,
No, o orgasm.

S0, you-—you can't—even 3 MAN trying to masrbate you, you can not
QIREIM,

Na,

Waw,

There's » first time for cverything isa't there.
That's crazy,

1 know, itn't tat weird?

(Insudible)

You know, | grve (inwuditie) oral on 1he rsdic.
Rally?

Yeah snd you say you don’t like it—but ya—maybe the resvon you don't like
it fs because you heven’t goiten 1t conealy,
Yeah; that is true.

Well, vou Jnorw what, ] mean-—1hst could be

Right, So if you wanna hike yourself up over here and you know, | could
show ya~
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{Laughing)

--the proper way W de it
{Laugh) 1 appreciats the offer.
Okay. Was that a solid no?
That's » s0%id o,

Famastic

(Laughing)

{Inaudible), ] tried— tried 8l my bag of wicks, I've exhausted them all.
Yeah.

1 was trying to wake it 10 the—{inaudible)—

But you made » good run at it though.

Let me show you my four—my four—-my four—you know, 1 20t 50 many

different bag of tricks. 1 went from her doing herself'in private...
Right.

{Laughing)

To her doing it here and with me coaching and giviog play by play ...
(Lsughing)

Chear in the gudia.

(Laugh}

To Sarahk doing i,

Qleny...

To—t0 ma doing it! And § struck out afl four—four strikes and yoo're—
yem're salidly out Brent.

Yeah.

Right.

And you didn’s even foul one off man.

Na, 1 didn"t even foul one off.

(Lsughing)

1—1 got Bruce Spri— 1 ot Bruse (inandible) end Fernando Vencmels
(imwudible).

(Laughing)

Well thank you for being—for being 5o non-eccommodating today theugh,
Wilary,

T'm sorxy.

You—yon throw me all theaz emotional bones, and you're expecting I'm
gonna bite on scvesal, and ) dig—-and then you're nat abls 1o facifitste any of
them

Twizd.

1802



Federal Communications Commission FCC 04-17

Atnchmenm A

SM Right.

FH Yied,

SEGMENT 6: No 7. 3:30- M
Male Host; MH

Male Co-host: SH
Female Guest: FGF1-2]

FGl

FG1

Mo, we work in &, its like 5 (maudible) office.

Right.

Off-gite. Butit's fike nerr Rt 50...

Yeah

Right, righ.

Well, wou know Indics, we're gons tuke 3 picture of your booba now. Ate you
- are yon embarsassed?

{(Laughing)

Vary. (laugh) Very.

Tell the fadies that erc lisiening 10 the thow and are possibly gonna be pari of
the 12 boobs of Chrinimas, its not thar bed,

No, its not.

We'te trying 10 make it comiortable for you lovely ladiex. ), you knowr, |
would be embarrassed 100, T hed to gowo p -

(Lavghing)
in & room full of s bunch of girls and show my small penis.
QLrughing)

Inevitably that's what you're doing, tight. 1 meen ~ shhough - oy boobs and
your = your bochs and s -

1 think boebs and penis are way Jifferent.
Yeah, 1 mezan, you knony -
You—you can get & boob enlargement -

(Tolking over second host) one's just (insudible) and the other gre's just -
sdd-ons, vou kaow?

Yeah, but 513, its {inaudible).

Yeah it is sexun! bt you govs sce sexy, You boww what 1'm saying? I sin't
like you some block-rocking road whores  You guys ere hot,

(Leugh)
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M You goys sre hot, 1 mean, you know what I'm saying? And - you know, the
only 1hing you guys are missing is & real nice set of boobies.

FGlo2 (Mumbling) yesh (inaudible).

MH Alright, well, feis ge1 some pictures hese. We'll po with you firsi though,
Liss. Are you Lisa or Vanesss?

FG1 Vanesse.

MR Okay Yanessa.

FG1 Alrig, do L 1ske it il the way ofT or~

SH No no 1o, (iraudible)... et on myw

MH You gana g&1 on toy boamer chair here though.

FG1&2 {Laughing)

SH Are you guys marmied? You guys marcied?

FG1 No.

FG2 I'tn recertly single. ,

MY O, you're retently single? And how *bout yeu. You single or Are you
mwried?

FG3 ' Yeah, | have nboyfiiend. He's aciually listening in the ¢ar (laugh) right now.

MH Wha—What's bit name?

FG) Brandon,

MY What's he do for « tiving?

FG! He is 1 maintenance supervisor,

MH Right.

SR Jamitor?

FGY (Lsuphing) No-os

ME That means he changes oil.

SH (Laughing)

FG1 (Jauphiag)No

MR {Snuttering - inaudible) When was the last1ime you and Brandon screwed?
Be honen.

F Tast night.

MH You guys screwed fan nign?

FGl Mmm b,

MH How wasi?

- FGI 1t was good.
MH

What position is your favorRe? Like, last night, whatd you guys end up «
FG2 (Lasughing)
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EGl Jts actually just—mwith him on1op. Ceuse ) had surgery so I can't do it & fot of
di¥ferent ways.

MH Really, what kind of surgery? Like a~—1ike a ovarian kinda deal?

FGl Mmm hmm. I had my right one removed.

MH Oh, are you gonna be oksy on that dex!?

Gl Yeah

MH Are you sure?

FGi Yer

MH Right, so thav—that kinda hinders like the doggie and the (innudible)--

FG1 Yesh. |

MH Righ.

F@ Yeab,

sH Do:; 1hat mean you can't have kids st all ar, how, T mean, does tha affect
you

FGl It's just limited. 308 Tike, cavse you only have one overy now.

MH ‘Right, instead of two.

FGl Right.

MH You only got one gonlie, instead of two goalie’s blocking out the (inaudible)

¥G1 Right (Jaughing).

MY (Stil] dking, insudible).

FG) Right.

MH Alright, so you—-did you give him o) Ias night?

FG1 - Ne.

MH Why not]

FG1 Cause,

ME You don's ke that.

) No, 1do it often,

MH Wl you Sowned it up, like possibly you hed & big on {insudibie), And, I
mean, that's very impogiant for us guys, 1o be bonest with you.

FG1 Well he actunlly gets g a lot.

MH Hegeisa ot of onal.

FG1 Juai not st might (laughing) um. ..

MH

Really, how ofien does Brandon get oral fram—~from your kot self?
FG) Usualiy...

MH Oacz 2 dny?
P& Yesh,
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Renlly.
(Inawdible)
I mean, that's a bl

Yesh. That's prewy—~that's nice cdds. Thauuh, preny good.

Do yout uh—do ypu uh—-t0 vou, let me see. do you recycle or 4o you.-
{Lavghing)

You uh—Yob th—you don't waste « drop? (insudible) right?

Right.

You 4o that 1o0?

Hmm bmm.

Wow you lintle sleazy (meudible).

When you look &t het you wouldn't even, you wouldn'’t even brlieve i

Gud, you're to—-you are 60 conscrvative and school-teaches-Hke, tut yei you
know=

{Laughing}

you give oral sex, you don'l waste a drop, God, Wowl

{Laughing}

Alright, well pet on my boosier—see that litile boosier chair over there? My
shady booa~—And you gotte isttoo—

She's gown kittle tanto—

On the belly butlon (inaudible)... Now Brent’s Gnaudible)

Oh yeah, She's a freak- {intndible)

Are you z freak?

s official.

Well-

1t*s official, Breat's (insvdible) on it

(Lauphing)

Righ.

Ate you a freak? | mean; you know like when you're getting’ laid ste yoo
vocal, -

Mimm Fmm

D you 161l Brandon, “harder, harder, and (- me hurder,” the whole rine
yards?

Yezh. Youcan't just Iny there,

Right. Wow, Okay, con) Well, lers—1lers get von on my shady, uh hitie
booster chair heye,
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Brent, I'm ponna give you Like 1en dollare and see i vou can get ong of the
producers to buy me & new thady chair. 'm afraid that sone—one of these

Jadies with the high heeis sre gonma poke through that little hole, you know
what I'm saying?

Take ‘emafl, You can take~
Yeah, there you go.

Laok at you. Well——what are you like xsize 3, & size 17 Alrigl, gef ot the
chaitthere. Ch—no, just s—no stand, gtand. Don’t sit, just sland. You can

Xkeep vour—-you car keep vour heels an baby. I'm sure vou're coofinaudible),
There you go. Wow, look at you,

(Giggling)
Just (inandibleje=don’t be~—don’t be nervous, swestie,
(in background, innvdible)

Hold on, vou're boylriend isn't gonne s2e your boobe? Cause you're that
conscious of them? Bux 1 waana help facilitate you on some new boobies,

haby.

(In background) oksy,.

§ bope 1 ¢eantoo, 1 reelly de. 1—

{Gigaling)

Wow.

1 hope imaudible) picks you.

Brandom's pous be pissad, man. Here we wre ehecking out herse
Yeah, here we zre checking owt her iities, and he never--
And he neves oven tees them

Bererose you know, 1 can 1ook now,

We'll describe them 10 you, Brandan,

{Laagh)

Yesh but Twould-s

Tape ends.
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mher 27,4 PY-

MH

Second Male: M

Thid Mole;

Singer:
Chorus;

FE ga gPERREERE B
g

SM&TM
$l

2E

™ (sometnmes indigtinguishable)
|
CH

(Recarding dreaks i amidst discussion]

~1 ¥new thar ] bad big ones byt, 1 guess 1 ot big ones. J—neverhave besn
1ol that, guvs — thay my testiclex were eb-abnormally large.

Miusie beginy v the background.

T Ssut tisne T ve tver sten ' ein-~testicles that big. Fomos or anything,
Serivnxly,

Yesh.

Saricusly,

Yeésh,

You aould treak ‘am into (mavdible) (gardled mumdimg).
Yezh

{Laugh)

1 shink you might have genital elephantitus, I'm zerious. You bener get thase
things Ohecked mk.

You g sboosmel taed boys,..

Yeah~ they'te huge.

All loghing. Sorg fades over digcussion.

(Tomuste) Well b’ the big i king of thodk jock eaproptiaty.
1 got big onzs

And Bubba’s bahlceplls sce of the goconu-size varery.

They were henging.

And he wore xira-larat size diapers when he was very srll. to fast. s
ba{bleep)ils were 30 damn big that Bubba couldn't even crawl. (Cliorus of
music begmy) OpBubba’s got big bableep)ils.

©h yoo éb,

Sesioinly.

Giam big befblaep)ls.
They'se wstmonions.
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They're shaped Bike beach balle. And they're stinky big ba(bleep)ils. Ob Ned
has 5ig 6ableepliis, and Spice Doy, he's got big ba(bleep)ils.

Yeah~huge. {Insudible)

But Bubba's go1 the biggesie

Juge (leughing).

(With chores) Belbleep)lls of thamn alll

Bubbe's ba(bleep)lis are always iching and they're Al of litrle crabs. And
Brem likes 1o bounce them up end down upon his chin,

1 mean, God.

Ooh,

And if you ¢laim thay Yours are bigger, then you sre just o fibleepicking liar,
Bubbs's ba(bleep)lls could hoat Alnsks if they ever caught on fire.

Bubba's baibleep)]ls bounce en the floor every time he gets undrereed.

Yeaas.

And those things would be g D-cup if you stuck thems on your chem,

1 g0t big ones.

Bubba's balblecp)lis are firm and meaty and they never ever drogp. One time

I cven sew 4 black man try to donk one throvgh 3 hoop. (Chorus of music
beging} Ob Bubba’s got big ba(bleep)iis.

That's huge.

Giam big ba(bleep)lis.

Soft bslls.

Thex're zhaped like beach balls. And they're stinky big bafblesp)ils.
Henging,

Yes Nod tns big bafbieer)ils, and ohy, Spice Boy's got big ba(bleep)lls.
(FPith chorus) But Bubba's got the biggest-

That's buge.
(With chones) Ba{blzep)ils of them alit

(I background) Oh—he's got big balis. He’s got big balls. He's gotbig
balls {cominues repeaimg).

You got some chnlsloupes down there.

And he's just itching 10 tell you about them.
Do they look BE feom ahe sides?
Ag nauseum.

I think it wowld look fairly impressive if 1 would thow it te vou puys
Eeeuf,
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(Still repeating an bockground) Oh—he’s gen big balls. He's ot big batls,
He's got big ballt fcontinuing).

In-groom baigs,

Got big ones.

{Comtinving in bockground} -he's got big balls. He's get big bells (will
repegiing),

Fimples.

Eeuh, God.

Cotiage cheese,

{n background silf repeating, then chorns) But Bobba's pot the bigges—

Yeah, you need 10 s1an1 thumping (thuniping nofse} an them fike the prothsce,
{In background) Balls of them sil!
Chaffing.

Serus.

n bagkground) Oh—~he’s got big balls, He's gon big balla frepearing).
Salmonelin.

1810



Federal Communications Commission FCC 04-17

Attachment B

FCC List of Small Entities

1811



Federal Communications Commission FCC 04-17

QOctober 2002
ATTACHMENT B

FCC List of Small Entities

As described below, a “small entity” may be a small organization,
a small governmental jurisdiction, or a small business.

AP iy \ BiE aet ot
figlon ™.

Any not—for-proﬁt enterpnse that is independenﬂy owned and operated and
is not dominant in its field.

@ Smill Governsionti Jurisdiction

Governments of cities, counties, towns, townships, villages, school districts, or
special districts, with a population of less than fifty thousand.

Any business concern that is independenﬂy owned and operated and
is not dominant in its field, and meets the pertinent size criterion described below.

v, Sefrees -Description of Small Buiiness Size Stlndards
v mﬁﬁw&s or Systems - -

R PRTIRCAAI . v

Special Size Standard —

Cable Systems Small Cable Company has 400,000 Subscribers Nationwide
or Fewer

Cable and Other Program Distribution

Open Video Systemns $12.5 Million in Annual Receipts or Less

S.os. RN "EGoiimon-Carrier Sérvices.and Related Entities -

Wn'elmc Camers and Servnce providers

Local Exchange Carriers, Competitive Access

Providers, Interexchange Carriers, Operator 1,500 Employees or Fewer

Service Providers, Payphone Providers, and

Resellers

Note: With the exception of Cable Systemns, all size standards are expressed in either millions of dollars or
number of employees and are generally the average annual receipts or the average employment of a firm.
Directions for calculating average annual receipts and average employment of a firm can be found in

13 CFR 121.104 and 13 CFR 121.106, respectively.

Intcrnatmnal Broadcast Stanons
International Public Fixed Radio (Pubhc and
Control Stations)
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Fixed Satellite Transmit/Receive Earth Stations

Fixed Satellite Very Small Aperture Terminal
Systems

Mobile Satellite Earth Stations

Radio Determination Satellite Earth Stations

Geostationary Space Stations

$12.5 Million in Annual Receipts or Less

Non-Geostationary Space Stations

Direct Broadcast Satellites

Home Satellite Dish Service

. iMas MedlaSeriees o

Television Services

Low Power Television Services and Television
Translator Stations

$12 Million in Annual Receipts or Less

TV Auxiliary, Special Broadcast and Other
Program Distribution Services

Radio Services

Radio Auxiliary, Special Broadcast and Other
Program Distribution Services

$6 Million in Annual Receipts or Less

Multipoint Distribution Service

Auction Special Size Standard —
Small Business is less than $40M in annual gross revenues
for three preceding years

e - o ,‘..-'.::-;‘%aﬁ-s ﬂiﬁf‘tﬂﬁf]‘l\‘ rei “tl?mibileSmlc'cs

Cellular Li;:ensees .

220 MHz Radio Service — Phase I Licensees

1,500 Employees or Fewer

220 MHz Radio Service — Phase II Licensees

Auction special size standard -

700 MHZ Guard Band Licensees

Small Business is average gross revenues of $15M or less for

Private and Common Carrier Paging

the preceding three years (includes affiliates and controlling
principals)

Very Small Business is average gross revenues of $3M or
less for the preceding three years (includes affiliates and
controlling principals)

Broadband Personal Communications Services

(Blocks A, B, D, and E) 1,500 Employees or Fewer

Broadband Personal Communications Services | Auction special size standard -

(Block C) Small Business is $40M or less in annual gross revenues for
Broadband Personal Communications Services | three previous calendar years

(Block F) Very Small Business is average gross revenues of $15M or

Narrowband Personal Communications Services

less for the preceding three calendar years (includes affiliates
and persons or entities that hold interest in such entity and
their affiliates)

Rural Radiotelephone Service

1,500 Employees or Fewer

Air-Ground Radiotelephone Service

800 MHz Specialized Mobile Radio

Auction special size standard -

900 MHz Specialized Mobile Radio Small Business is $15M or less average annual gross
revenues for three preceding calendar years

Private Land Mobile Radio 1,500 Employees or Fewer

Amateur Radio Service N/A

Aviation and Marine Radio Service

Fixed Microwave Services 1,500 Employees or Fewer
Small Business is 1,500 employees or less

Public Safety Radio Services Small Government Entities has population of Jess than

50,000 persons

Wireless Telephony and Paging and Messaging

1,500 Employees or Fewer

Personal Radio Services

N/A
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Offshore Radiotelephone Service

1,500 Employees or Fewer

Wireless Communications Services

Small Business is $40M or less average annual gross

39 GHz Service

revenues for three preceding years
Very Small Business is average gross revenues of $15M or
less for the preceding three years

Multipoint Distribution Service

Auction special size standard (1996) —

Small Business is $40M or less average annual gross
revenues for three preceding calendar years

Prior to Auction —

Small Business has annual revenue of $12.5M or less

Multichannel Multipoint Distribution Service

Instructional Television Fixed Service

$12.5 Million in Annual Receipts or Less

Local Multipoint Distribution Service

Auction special size standard (1998) —

Small Business is $40M or less average annual gross
revenues for three preceding years

Yery Small Business is average gross revenues of $15M or
less for the preceding three years

218-219 MHZ Service

First Auction special size standard (1994) -

Small Business is an entity that, together with its affiliates,
has no more than a $6M net worth and, after federal income
taxes (excluding carryover losses) has no more than $2M in
annual profits each year for the previous two years

New Standard :
Small Business is average gross revenues of $15M or less for
the preceding three years (includes affiliates and persons or
entities that hold interest in such entity and their affiliates)
Very Small Business is average gross revenues of $3M or
less for the preceding three years (includes affiliates and
persons or entities that hold interest in such entity and their
affiliates)

Satellite Master Antenna Television Systems

$12.5 Million in Annual Receipts or Less

24 GHz — Incixmbent Licensees

1,500 Employees or Fewer

24 GHz — Future Licensees

Small Business is average gross revenues of $15M or less for
the preceding three years (includes affiliates and persons or
entities that hold interest in such entity and their affiliates)
Very Small Business is average gross revenues of $3M or
less for the preceding three years (includes affiliates and
persons or entities that hold interest in such entity and their
affiliates)

On-Line Information Services $18 Million in Annual Receipts or Less
Radio and Television Broadcasting and Wireless

Communications Equipment Manufacturers

Audio and Video Equipment Manufacturers 750 Employees or Fewer
Telephone Apparatus Manufacturers (Except

Cellular) 1,000 Employees or Fewer
Medical Implant Device Manufacturers 500 Employees or Fewer

Hospitals

$29 Million in Annual Receipts or Less

Nursing Homes $11.5 Million in Annual Receipts or Less
Hotels and Motels $6 Million in Annual Receipts or Less
Tower QOwners (See Lessee’s Type of Business)
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SEPARATE STATEMENT OF
CHAIRMAN MICHAEL K. POWELL

Re:  Clear Channel Broadcasting Licenses, Inc., Licensee of Station WPLA(FM), Callahan,
Florida; WCKT(FM), Port Charlotte, Florida (Formerly Station WRLR(FM)); Citicasters
Licenses, L.P., Licensee of Station WXTB(FM), Clearwater, Florida; Capstar TX Limited
Partnership, Licensee of Station WRLX(FM), West Palm Beach, Florida.

Seven broadcasts, twenty-six indecency violations, four public file violations and fines
equaling $755,000. By today’s action, we provide yet another example of this Commission’s
commitment to enforce its rules and regulations—especially as it relates to indecent programming
engulfing our broadcast airwaves.

As the Commission with the strongest enforcement record in decades, it should come as
little surprise that this Commission’s indecency enforcement has dwarfed its predecessors. I am
proud of the fact that over the past three years, we have proposed nearly twice the dollar amount
of indecency fines than the previous two Commissions combined (over seven years) and ten times
the amount of fines proposed by the last Commission.

Now is not, however, a time to rest on our laurels and no broadcaster should believe that
we will. Indeed, due to the leadership on this issue from Commissioner Martin, the Commission
will soon begin considering fines for each separate utterance found indecent in a broadcast. In
addition, we will continue to look to Congress to dramatically increase the enforcement penalties
available to us to prosecute clear indecency violations. Iapplaud Chairman Upton, Chairman
Tauzin, Congressmen Dingell and Markey, Chairman McCain, Senator Hollings and the many
others on both sides of the aisle in Congress for providing vital leadership on this issue.

As the Commission continues the challenging task of balancing the protections of the First
Amendment with the need to protect our young, these increased enforcement actions will allow the
Commission to turn what is now a “cost of doing business” into a significant “cost for doing indecent
business.”
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SEPARATE STATEMENT OF
COMMISSIONER MICHAEL J. COPPS,
DISSENTING

Re: Clear Channel Broadcasting Licenses, Inc., Licensee of Stations WPLA(FM), Callahan,

. Florida, and WCKT(FM), Port Charlotte, Florida (Formerly Station WRLR(FM)); Citicasters
Licenses, L.P., Licensee of Station WXTB(FM), Clearwater, Florida; Capstar TX Limited
Partnership, Licensee of Station WRLX(FM), West Palm Beach, Florida, Notice of Apparent
Liability for Forfeiture

In this case, four Clear Channel stations aired on several occasions graphic and explicit
sexual content as entertainment. The extreme nature of these broadcasts and the fact that the
show at issue has been the subject of repeated indecency actions gives the FCC the obligation to
take serious action. Instead, the majority proposes a mere $27,500 fine for each incident. Sucha
fine will be easily absorbed as a “cost of doing business™ and fails to send a message that the
Commission is serious about enforcing the nation’s indecency laws. “Cost of doing business
fines” are never going to stop the media’s slide to the bottom.

To fulfill our duty under the law, I believe the Commission should have designated these
cases for a hearing on the revocation of these stations’ licenses, as provided for by Section
312(a)(6) of the Communications Act. Iam discouraged that my colleagues would not join me in
taking a firm stand against indecency on the airwaves.

If the Commission can’t bring itself to go to a revocation hearing, at least the
Commission should have used its current statutory authority to impose a higher and meaningful
fine. The Commission could have proposed a fine for each separate “utterance” that was
indecent, rather than one fine for each lengthy segment. As Cominissioner Martin points out,
such an approach would have led to a significantly higher fine.

Here, four Clear Channel stations ran several segments of the “Bubba the Love Sponge”
show which contained graphic and explicit sexual content. The majority admits that each of these
stations appears to have egregiously and extensively violated the statutory ban on broadcast of
indecent material numerous times. But then the majority inexplicably determines that the
appropriate recourse for this filth is a $27,5Q0 fine for each violation.

The majority states that, in light of Clear Channel’s history of violations of the indecency
rules, other serious multiple violations “may well lead to license revocation proceedings.” The
majority fails to acknowledge that not just Clear Channel, but the “Bubba the Love Sponge”
show, has been the subject of at least three previous fines for violating our nation’s indecency
laws. This is not even “three strikes and you are out” enforcement. How many strikes are we
going to give them?

This case may well lead broadcasters to believe that this Commission will never use the
enforcement authority it currently has available to it. The message to licensees is clear. Even
egregious repeated violations will not result in revocation of a license. Rather, they will result
only in a financial penalty that is merely a cost of doing business.

The time has come for this Commission to take a firm stand against the “race to the

bottom” as the level of discourse on the public’s airwaves gets progressively coarser and more
violent. Our enforcement actions should convince broadcasters that they cannot ignore their
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responsibility to serve the public interest and to protect children. The FCC’s action today fails to
do so.
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SEPARATE STATEMENT OF
COMMISSIONER KEVIN J. MARTIN

Re: Clear Channel Broadcasting Licenses, Inc., Licensee of Station WPLA(FM), Callahan,
Florida, WCKI(FM), Port Charlotte, Florida; Citicasters Licenses, L.P., Licensee of
Station WXTB(FM), Clearwater, Florida; Capstar TX Limited Partnership, Licensee of
Station WRLX(FM), West Palm Beach, Florida, Notice of Apparent Liability for
Forfeiture

I agree with this Notice’s conclusion that the licensees at issue apparently violated our
indecency rule and public file requirements,

1 write separately to emphasize again that we could, and should, be placing higher fines
on those who broadcast indecent programming during the hours when children may be watching
or listening, in violation of our rules and statute. The governing statute targets “whoever utters”
indecent or profane language, and the Commission should not continue to treat an entire program
full of indecent “utterances” as just one violation.! We should not continue to give a broadcaster
who violates our indecency rule at the beginning of a program a “free pass™ for the next two
hours.

In this case, I would have found numerous violations, for a total indecency fine
significantly higher than that proposed (it appears there were at least 49 indecency violations, for
a tota] forfeiture exceeding $1,000,000). '

! See 18 U.S.C. § 1864 (“Whoever utters any obscene, indecent, or profane language by means of radio
communication shall be fined under this title or imprisoned not more than two years, or both™), 47 CF.R. §
73.3999 (“No licensee of a radio or television broadcast station shall broadcast on any day between 6 a.m. and
10 p.m. any material which is indecent™).
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SEPARATE STATEMENT OF
COMMISSIONER JONATHAN S. ADELSTEIN

Re: Clear Channel Broadcasting Licenses, Inc., Notice of Apparent Liability for Forfeiture

The Commission has a duty to enforce statutory and regulatory provisions restricting
broadcast indecency. The material broadcast by these four Clear Channel radio stations is
undeniably graphic and explicit in its sexual content and clearly intended to shock listeners.
Clear Channel and, indeed, this particular “Bubba the Love Sponge” program have been the
subject of repeated Commission indecency actions in the past. Given the explicit nature of the
broadcast material and the history of prior offenses, this is the type of serious repeated behavior
that I believe would warrant initiation of license revocation hearings.

In fairness, however, this material was broadcast in 2001. The Commission clarified in
an April 2003 order that it was broadening its range of enforcement approaches and tools to
combat indecency on our nation’s public airwaves. For this reason, I approve of today’s Order as
legally appropriate. The egregious nature of the material clearly warrants the statutory maximum
$27,500 fine per violation. While the Commission at all times has the authority to initiate license
revocation hearings or sanction for multiple indecent utterances in a given program segment, it
can be argued that the Commission was not employing these approaches at the time this material
was broadcast. Nonetheless, as we made clear last year, broadcasters are now aware that the
Commission will not hesitate to use its full range of enforcement sanctions for indecent material
broadcast after April 2003.

1 also acknowledge the importance of broadcasters adhering to the public inspection file
rules. Documents pertaining to an FCC investigation are clearly within the scope of the
information that must be maintained in a manner accessible to the listening public. In this case,
each of the stations inexplicably failed to include complaints related to the airing of this material
in their public files.

A broadcast license is a public privilege. In return, broadcasters have a responsibility to
serve the public. This public interest responsibility clearly encompasses protecting children from
. indecency on the airwaves and facilitating public access to documentation through which the
'~ station can remain accountable to its local community and listening public. These stations
exhibited a blatant disregard for both.
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AMFM Radio Licenses, LLC, 18 FCC Rcd 19917 (2003)

(“Elliott in the Morning” broadcasts of May 7 aﬁd 8, 2002 on
Station WWDC-FM, Washington, D.C.)
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Before the
Federal Communieations Commission
Washington, DC 20554

In the Matter of )

)

)
AMFM RADIO LICENSES, LLC ) File Nos. EB-02-1H-0472

) EB-02-1H-0494

: ) NAL/Acct. No.200432080003

Licensee of Station WWDC-FM ) FRN 0003720935
Washington, DC ) Facility ID No. 8682

)

NOTICE OF APPARENT LIABILITY FOR FORFEITURE
Adopted: September 30, 2003 Released: October 2, 2003

By the Commission: Commissioner Martin concurring and issuing a separate statement; Commissioner
Adelstein issuing a separate statement; Commissioner Copps dissenting and issuing a separate statement.

I INTRODUCTION

1. In this Notice of Apparent Liability for Forfeiture (‘NAL”), issued pursuant to section
503 of the Communications Act of 1934, as amended (the “Act™) and section 1.80 of the Commission’s
rules,' we grant complaints from Reverend Michael G. Taylor and from Catherine P. Henry? and find that
AMFM Radio Licenses, LLC (“AMFM?), licensee of Station WWDC-FM, Washington, DC, apparently
violated 18 U.S.C. § 1464 and 47 C.F.R. § 73.3999, by willfully and repeatedly airing indecent material
over the station during its May 7 and 8, 2002, broadcasts of the “Elliott in the Moming” program. Based
upon our review of the facts and circumstances in this case, we conclude that AMFM is apparently liable
for a monetary forfeiture in the amount of Fifty-Five Thousand Dollars ($55,000.00). ‘

I BACKGROUND

2, The Commission received complaints that Station WWDC-FM broadcast indecent
material on May 7 and 8, 2002, at or about 8:00 a.m. during the “Elliot in the Morning” program. The
complaints seek Commission redress for the broadcasts’ alleged use of “crude language, explicit sexual
references” and “blatant attempt to mock” the Bishop Denis J. O’Connell High School (“Bishop
O’Connell High School”) community, generally, and the Bishop O’Connell High School students,

147 US.C. § 503(b)2002); 47 C.F.R. § 1.80(2002).

% See Letter from Reverend Michael G. Taylor, Chaplain, Assistant Principal, Bishop O’Connell High School, to
Commissioner Michael J. Copps, Federal Communications Commission, dated May 23, 2002 (“Reverend Taylor
Letter”); Letter from Catherine P. Henry to Enforcement Bureau, Federal Communications Commission,
Enforcement Bureau, dated May 8, 2002 (complaining about the broadcasts and additionally enclosing 73 letters
from Bishop O’Connell students, who complained that the broadcasts denigrated Bishop O’Connell High School’s
principal and student body). 199 17
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administration and principal, particularly.’ In support of his complaint, Reverend Taylor submitted an
audio tape of both broadcasts.’

3. The portion of the May 7 broadcast in question involved a station-sponsored promotion,
during which two female students called in for the opportunity to audition to dance in a cage at an
upcoming rock music concert’ At the prompting of the program hosts, the two callers identified
themselves as students at Bishop O’Connell High School, described their physical attributes in terms of
“both [being] pretty hot,”™ provided their bra sizes, and otherwise engaged in sexual banter with the
program hosts.® The program hosts continued to probe by asking the two female students leading
questions, such as whether they were “kind of like an exhibitionist,” “flash[ed] from time to time,” did
occasional “little show[s] at parties” together with their “boobies out,”'® “at school lined like two or three
guys up against the lockers,”" and had sexual encounters in the school’s stairwells and closets.” The
program hosts also asked the two female students whether they had “ever hooked up” or “made out with a
teacher.”” During their interview with the two female students, the program hosts repeatedly returned to
the subjgct of their “lining up” boys “against their lockers,”"* and interjected loud sucking and slurping
sounds.

4, The portion of the May 8 broadcast in question related to the two female students’
suspension from Bishop O’Connell High School, the consequence of their interview during the May 7
broadcast. The program hosts ‘continued their repeated references to oral sex during this broadcast,
commencing the segment by reading from the Bishop O’Connell High School’s website’s stated school
mission of “pursuit of excellence of the whole person” and interjecting, “and then you go down.™
Noting the website’s stated objective of “a healthy lifestyle” for the school’s students, speaking as if his
mouth was full and with loud sucking and slurping sounds in the background, one program host made
reference to “healthful protein.”'” The program hosts also criticized the girls’ suspension from school by
remarking that “if they’re blowing guys at the school, that’s not their fault . . . the school needs to do a
better job policing,” and “some of the priests would ask if they had brothers.”’® Referring to the high
school administration’s apparent concern about the school’s reputation, the program hosts further stated
that “people spend a lot of money to get that [Bishop O’Connell High School’s] image,” and “people

3 Reverend Taylor Letter at 1.
4 See Frogram transcript, Attachment A.
*I1d at 10-15

6 1d. at 14.

"1d at 11, 14.

®Id at 10-12, 14-15.

*id at 11.

0 1d at 14.

W id at 12,

2 1d at 15.

" 1d at 14-15.

“1d at 12, 14-17.

B 1d. at 12.

" 1d, at 17.

' 1d at 17-18.

8 1d. at 20.
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spend a lot of money to go to college [and] it ain’t like people ain’t screwing there.”"® The program hosts
also took calls from several other Bishop O’Connell ngh School students, askmg one male student if he
“was one of the guys that [the two female callers] blew in the hallways,” and another if he “ever had
[his] back up against a locker.””' Finally, the program hosts asked one student caller if, after the May 7
broadcast, the Bishop O’Connell High School principal “actually g[o]t on the P.A. system and talk[ed]
about how they [the two female caller students] were giving blowjobs in the hallway,” speculated that the
principal probably had “never gotten a blowjob from his wife,” and said that they “hear [the principal]
told [one of the female caller students] she’s gotta give up semen for Lent.” 2

5. After reviewing the complamts and the audlo tape, the staff issued a letter of inquiry to
AMFM, with which we enclosed a copy of the tape.” Clear Channel Commumcatlons, Inc. (“Clear
Channel”), corporate parent of AMFM, responded to the letter of inquiry.? Clear Channel did not dxspute
that WWDC-FM had broadcast the material contained in the tape, at the dates and times set forth in the
complaints, but claimed that, because the tape appeared to contain some omissions, it was not an accurate
record of the entire broadcasts. Clear Channel also asserted that the material is not acttonably indecent
under the Commission’s established policies. In response to a further letter of inquiry,” Clear Channel
adwsed that it aired the material in question only on WWDC-FM.”

II. DISCUSSION

6. The Federal Communications Commission is authorized to license radio and television
broadcast stations and is responsible for enforcing the Commission’s rules and applicable statutory
provisions concerning the operation of those stations. The Commission’s role in overseeing program
content is very limited. The First Amendment to the United States Constitution and section 326 of the
Act prohibit the Commnssmn from censoring program material and from interfering with broadcasters”
freedom of expressnon 7 The Commission does, however, have the authority to enforce statutory and
regulatory provisions restricting indecency. Title 18 of the United States Code, Section 1464 prohibits
the utterance of “any obscene, indecent or profane language by means of radio communication.® In
addition, section 73.3999 of the Commission’s rules provides that radio and television stations shall not
broadcast indecent material during the period 6 a.m. through 10 p.m.

¥ 1d at23.
2 1d at 24.
2 1d at26.
2 Id at23-24, 26.

3 See Letter from Charles W. Kelley, Chief, Investigations and Hearings Division, Enforcement Bureau, Federal
Communications Commission to AMFM Radio Licenses, LLC, dated November 15, 2002.

M See Letter from Kenneth E. Wyker, Senior Vice President and General Counsel, Clear Channel Communications,
Inc. to Marlene H. Dortch, Secretary, Federal Communications Commission, dated December 16, 2002 (“Clear
Channel Response to Inquiry™).

 See Letter from Maureen F. Del Duca, Chief, Investigations and Hearings Division, Enforcement Bureau, Federal
Communicstions Commission to AMFM Radio Licenses, LLC, dated July 2, 2003. We note that the staff

appropriately now routinely asks, in letters of inquiry issued in response to indecency complaints, whether the
licensee (or co-owned stations) broadcast the complained-of material on other stations.

2 See Letter from Richard W. Wolf, Vice President, Clear Channel Communications, Inc. to Marlene H. Dortch,
Secretary, Federal Communications Commission, dated July 7, 2003,

2 See 47 U.S.C. § 326(2002).
™ See 18 U.S.C. § 1464.
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7. Under section 503(b)1) of the Act, any person who is determined by the Commission to
have willfully or repeatedly failed to comply with any provision of the Act or any rule, regulation, or
order issued by the Commission shall be liable to the United States for a monetary forfeiture penalty.” In
order to impose such a forfeiture penalty, the Commission must issue a notice of apparent liability, the
notice must be received, and the person against whom the notice has been issued must have an
opportunity to show, in writing, why no such forfeiture penalty should be imposed.® The Commission
will then issue a forfeiture if it finds by a preponderance of the evidence that the person has violated the
Act or a Commission rule.”’ As we set forth in greater detail below, we conclude under this standard that
AMFM is apparently liable for a forfeiture for its apparent willful and repeated violations of 18 U.S.C. §
1464 and section 73.3999 of the Commission’s rules.

A, Indecency Analysis

8. Any consideration of government action against allegedly indecent programming must
take into account the fact that such speech is protected under the First Amendment to the United States
Constitution. The federal courts consistently have upheld Congress’s authority to regulate the broadcast
of indecent speech, as well the Commission’s interpretation and implementation of the governing
statute.”> Nevertheless, the First Amendment is a critical constitutional limitation that demands that, in
indecency determinations, we proceed cautiously and with appropriate restraint.* -

9, The Commission defines indecent speech as language that, in context, depicts or
describes sexual or excretory activities or organs in terms patently offensive as measured by
contemporary community standards for the broadcast medium.>*

¥ 47 US.C. § 503(X1XB); 47 C.F.R. § 1.80(a)1); see also 47 U.S.C. § 503(b)(1XD) (forfeitures for violation of
14 US.C. § 1464). Section 312(f)(1) of the Act defines willful as “the conscious and deliberate commission or
omission of [any] act, irrespective of any intent to violate” the law. 47 U.S.C. § 312(fX1). The legislative history to
section 312(f)(1) of the Act clarifies that this definition of willful applies to both sections 312 and 503(b) of the Act,
H.R. Rep. No. 97-765, 97" Cong. 2d Sess. 51 (1982), and the Commission has so interpreted the term in the section
503(b) context. See, e.g., Application for Review of Southern California Broadcasting Co., Memorandum Opinion
and Order, 6 FCC Rcd 4387, 4388 (1991) (“Southern California Broadcasting Co.”). The Commission may also
assess a forfeiture for violations that are merely repeated, and not willful. See, e.g., Callais Cablevision, Inc., Grand
Isle, Louisiana, Notice of Apparent Liability for Monetary Forfeiture, 16 FCC Red 1359 (2001) (issuing a Notice of
Apparent Liability for, inter alia, a cable television operator’s repeated signal leakage). “Repeated” merely means
that the act was committed or omitied more than once, or lasts more than one day. Southern California
Broadcasting Co., 6 FCC Red at 4388, § 5; Callais Cablevision, Inc., 16 FCC Red at 1362, 99.

30 47 U.S.C. § 503(b); 47 C.F.R. § 1.80(f).

3 See, e.g., SBC Communications, Inc., Apparent Liability for Forfeiture, Forfeiture Order, 17 FCC Rcd 7589, 7591,
9 4 (2002) (forfeiture paid).

* Title 18 of the United States Code, section 1464 (18 U.S.C. § 1464), prohibits the utterance of “any obscene,
indecent or profane language by means of radio communication.” FCC v. Pacifica Foundation, 438 U.S. 726
(1978). See also Action for Children’s Television v. FCC, 852 F.2d 1332, 1339 (D.C. Cir. 1988) (“ACT I"): Action
Jor Children’s Television v. FCC, 932 F.2d 1504, 1508 (D.C. Cir. 1991), cert. denied, 503 U.S. 914 (1992) (“ACT
II"); Action for Children’s Television v. FCC, 58 F. 3d 654 (D.C. Cir. 1995), cert. denied, 516 U.S. 1043 (1996)
("ACT ™).

3 ACT I, 852 F2d at 1344 (“Broadcast material that is indecent but not obscene is protected by the First
Amendment; the FCC may regulate such material only with due respect for the high value our Constitution places
on freedom and choice in what people may say and hear.”) See also United States v. Playbay Entertainment Group,
Inc., 529 U.S. 803, 813-15 (2000).

** Infinity Broadcasting Corporation of Pennsylvania, 2 FCC Red 2705 (1987) (subsequent history omitted) (citing
Pacifica Foundation, 56 FCC 2d 94, 98 (1975), aff'd sub nom. FCC v. Pacifica Foundation, 438 U.S. 726 (1978)).
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Indecency findings involve at least two fundamental determinations. First, the material
alleged to be indecent must fall within the subject matter scope of our indecency
definition—that is, the material must describe or depict sexual or excretory organs or
activities. . . . Second, the broadcast must be patently c}g??znszve as measured by
contemporary commumty standards for the broadcast medium.

As an initial matter, Clear Channel does not dispute that it aired material describing or depicting sexual
activities. Although, in its response to the staff’s inquiry letter, Clear Channel maintains that, because the
tape “has obviously been heavily edited,” it “is not a complete and accurate record of the entire broadcast
on the dates in question,” Clear Channel does not dispute that it did, in fact, broadcast the material on the
tape, conceding that “the tape contains material broadcast by WWDC-FM, on or about May 7 or 8,
2002.™* The principal focus of the program segments was the sexual practices of the two May 7 student
callers and of other students at Bishop O’Connell High School. That material, therefore, warrants further
scrutiny to determine whether or not it was patently offensive as measured by contemporary community
standards for the broadcast medium.”

10. In our assessment of whether broadcast material is patently offensive, “the full context in
which the material appeared is critically important.”™*® Three principal factors are significant to this
contextual analysis: (1) the explicitness or graphic nature of the description; (2) whether the material
dwells on or repeats at length descnptxons of sexual or excretory organs or activities; and (3) whether the
material appears to pander or is used to titillate or shock.™ In examining these three factors, we must
weigh and balance them to determine whether the broadcast material is patently offensive because “[e]ach
indecency case presents its own particular mix of these, and possibly, other factors.”** In particular cases,
one or two of the factors may outwelgh the others, either rendenng the broadcast material patently
offensive and consequently indecent,"' or, alternatively, removing the broadcast material from the realm
of mdecency We turn now to our analysis of the three principal factors in our decision.

11.  First, the comments made by the program hosts during the broadcasts contained graphic
and explicit references to sexual activities, including repeated references to “blow jobs. "3 In addition to
these references and consistent with that tone, the hosts both simulated the act of oral sex, by repeatedly

3 Industry Guidance on the Commission’s Case Law Interpreting 18 U.S.C. §1464 and Enforcement Policies
Regara'mg Broadcast Indecency (*'Indecency Policy Statement™), 16 FCC Rcd 7999, 8002, 1 7-8 (2001) (emphasis
in original).

3 Clear Channel Response to Inquiry at 1.

37 The “contemporary standards for the broadcast medium™ criterion is that of an average broadcast listener and with
respect to Commission decisions, does not encompass any particular geographic area. See id at§ 8 and n. 15.

3 Indecency Policy Statement, 16 FCC Red at 8002, § 9 (emphasis in original). In this regard, in order for us to be
in a position to judge the context of particular material, once a complainant makes a prima facie case, it is
appropriate for the staff to seek from the licensee a tape or transcript not only of the relevant material, but also of a
reasonable amount of preceding and subsequent material.

¥ 1d, at 8002-15, 71 8-23.
“® 1d. at 8003, 1 10.

1 1d. at 8009, § 19 (citing Tempe Radio, Inc (KUPD-FM), 12 FCC Rcd 21828 (MMB 1997) (forfeiture paid)
(extremely graphic or explicit nature of references to sex with children outweighed the fleeting nature of the
references); EZ New Orleans, Inc. (WEZB(FM)), 12 FCC Red 4147 (MMB 1997) (forfeiture paid) (same),

*2 1d. at 8010, § 20 (“the manner and purpose of a presentation may well preclude an indecency determination even
though other factors, such as explicitness, might weigh in favor of an indecency finding™).

3 See notes 18, 20 and 22, and accompanying text, supra.
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making loud sucking and slurping sounds, and relied upon colloquial terms, by repeatedly referring to
locker line-ups and interjecting remarks such as “giv[ing] up semen for Lent,” “go[ing] down,” and taking
in “healthful protein.”® To the extent that the sound effects or colloquial terms that the program hosts
used to describe sexual activities could be described as innuendo rather than as direct references, they are
nonetheless sufficient to render the material actionably indecent because the sexual import of those
sounds and terms was “unmistakable.™ Given the explicit references and the graphic manner in which
the broadcasts described the activities of the Bishop O’Connell High School students, there is no non-
sexual meaning that a listener could possibly have attributed to these terms.* Therefore, we find that the
broadcasts at issue described sexual activities through the use of direct references, simulation, and/or
innuendo that were sufficiently explicit or graphic to be deemed patently offensive as measured by
contemporary community standards for the broadcast medium.

12. Second, the program hosts, in their dialogue between each other and with callers,
continuously focused on the sexual activities of the two initial female callers and other students at Bishop
O’Connell High School. The sexual discussion and references were not fleeting or isolated. Rather,
discussions about and references to sexual activity pervaded, and were the subject of, both the May 7 and
8 broadcasts. Thus, the sexual discussions and references were more than sufficiently dwelled upon and
repeated to constitute patently offensive material as measured by contemporary standards.

13. Finally, and perhaps most significantly, several characteristics of the manner in which the
station presented this material establish that AMFM intended that both broadcasts pander and shock
listeners. As an initial matter, the program hosts’ continued and repeated references to the Bishop
O’Connell High School students’ sexual activities and comments about the school’s administrators and
their sexual practices clearly evince such an intent with regard to the listening audience. During the May 7
broadcast, the program hosts geared their questions to the two female student callers to elicit information
from them regarding their sexual practices, focusing on the topic of oral sex in the hallways of the
school.¥’ On May 8, they turned their attention to seeking similar information from their other student
callers because the girls, in response to the program hosts’ encouragement, claimed they had performed
oral sex on other students at the school. The program hosts were not chastened by the notoriety with
young listeners that the May 7 broadcast engendered; rather, they continued their pandering in interviews
with other student callers and continued their efforts to shock listeners by focusing on sexual activities in
a school setting. Both broadcasts occurred at or about 8 a.m., when there was a reasonable risk that
children would be in the audience, on their way to or getting ready for school. Indeed, in light of the
number of student callers to the programs, that risk became reality. The WWDC-FM broadcasts targeted
the very segment of the population - - children, including teenagers under the age of 18 - whom the
government has a recognized and compelling interest to shield from indecent material.® By goading
these teenagers to discuss their sexual activities in a titillating and offensive manner, the program hosts
set out to pander and to shock. listeners. In this regard, the program hosts’ use of loud sucking and
slurping sounds when referring to oral sex demonstrates that, in context, this program was not simply a
non-pandering discussion of contemporary high school sexual behavior. For these reasons, we find that
the May 7 and 8 broadcasts were patently offensive as measured by contemporary community standards
for the broadcast medium.

“ Seenotes 11, 15, 16, 17, 19 and 22, and accompanying text, supra.

% See Indecency Policy Statement, 16 FCC Red at 8003-04, § 12 (2002); see also Telemundo of Puerto Rico License
Corp. (WKAQ-TV), 16 FCC Red 7157 (EB 2001) (forfeiture paid); Citcasters Co. (KEGL(FM), 15 FCC Red 19091
(EB 2000) (forfeiture paid).

% See Sagittarius Broadcast Corporation, 7 FCC Red 6873, 6874 (1972) (subsequent history omitted).
47 See notes 11 through 14, supra.
* See ACT I1l, 58 F.3d at 660-63.
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14, Clear Channel’s claims notwithstanding, the material presented in the May 7 and 8
broadcasts is similar to other matenal concerning sexual activities involving teenagers that the Bureau has
found to be apparently indecent.”

15. In sum, by broadcasting this material on May 7 and 8, 2002, within the 6 a.m. to 10 p.m.
time period relevant to an indecency determination under section 73.3999 of the Commission’s rules,
AMFM apparently violated 18 U.S.C. § 1464 and the Commission’s rules against broadcast indecency.

B. Proposed Forfeiture

16. Based upon our review of the record in this case, we conclude that AMFM is apparently
liable for forfeitures for two willful and repeated violations of our rules, one-for each of the broadcasts at
issue here. The Commission’s Fo ezture Policy Statement sets a base forfeiture amount of $7,000.00 for
transmission of indecent materials.”> The Forfeiture Policy Statement also specifies that the Commission
shall adjust a forfeiture based upon consideration of the factors enumerated in section 503(b}2XD) of the
Act, 47 U.S.C. § 503(bX2XD), such as “the nature, circumstances, extent and gravity of the violation,
and, with respect to the violator, the degree of culpability, any history of prior offenses, ability to pay, and
such other matters as justice may require.”” In this case, taking all of these factors into consideration, we
find that AMFM is apparently liable for a forfeiture of $55,000.00, reflecting the proposed imposition of
the maximum forfeiture amount for the broadcast of apparently indecent material on two separate
occasions (2 x $27,500.00). Based upon our review of the entire record, we believe that this upward
adjustment to the statutory maximum is warranted. The continued and repeated references to sexual
activities of the Bishop O’Connell High School students and administrators were calculated to.engender
notoriety and were targeted toward children, including teenagers under the age of 18. Moreover, the
material broadcast on two consecutive days was extensive. Accordingly, we believe the egregious nature of
the violations and the degree of culpability justifies an increase to the full amount. Additionally, there is a
recent history of indecent broadcasts on stations controlled by Clear Channel Communications, Inc.,
AMFM’s corporate parent, which justifies imposition of the maximum forfeiture amount.** We reiterate our
recent statement that multiple serious violations of our indecency rule by broadcasters may well lead to

* See, e.g. Citicasters Co. (KEGL(FM)), 16 FCC Red 7546 (EB 2001) (forfeiture paid) (finding a station
apparently liable for broadcasting a dialogue between program hosts and a female teenage caller in which she
engaged in sexual banter with the hosts, responded to their probing questions and described her masturbating
activities); Infinity Broadcasting Operations, Inc. (WNEW(FM)), 17 FCC Red 10665 (EB 2002)(response
pending)Xfinding a station apparently liable for airing a segment, during the program’s promoted “Teen Week,” in
which the program hosts gave detailed instructions to and encouraged a teenage girl caller to masturbate by rubbing
a telephone across her pubic area).

%2 The Commission’s Forfeiture Policy Statement and Amendment of Section 1.80 of the Rules to Incorporate the
Forfeiture Guidelines, 12 FCC Red 17087, 17113 (1997), recon. denied 15 FCC Red 303 (1999) (“Forfeiture Policy
Statement”); 47 C.F.R. § 1.80(b).

* Forfeiture Policy Statement, 12 FCC Red at 17100-01, § 27.

 Citicasters Co. (KEGL(FM)), 16 FCC Rcd 7546 (EB 2001) (forfeiture paid); Citicasters Co. (KSJO(FM)), 15
FCC Red 19095 (EB 2000 Xforfeiture paid); Citicasters Co. (KSJO(FM)), 15 FCC Red 19091 (EB 2000)forfeiture
paid).
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license revocation proceedings.ss

IV. ORDERING CLAUSES

17. ACCORDINGLY, IT IS ORDERED, pursuant to section 503(b) of the Communications
Act of 1934, as amended, and section 1.80 of the Commission’s rules, that AMFM Radio Licenses, LLC
is hereby NOTIFIED of its APPARENT LIABILITY FOR FORFEITURE in the amount of Fifty-Five
Thousand Dollars ($55,000.00) for willfully and repeatedly violating 18 U.S.C. § 1464 and 73.3999 of the
Commission’s rules.

18. IT IS FURTHER ORDERED, pursuant to section 1.80 of the Commission’s rules, that
within thirty (30) days of this Notice, AMFM Radio Licenses, LLC SHALL PAY the full amount of the
proposed forfeiture or SHALL FILE a written statement seeking reduction or cancellation of the proposed
forfeiture.

19. Payment of the forfeiture may be made by mailing a check or similar instrument, payable
to the order of the Federal Communications Commission, to Forfeiture Collection Section, Finance
Branch, Federal Communications Commission, P.O. Box 73482, Chicago, IHinois 60673-7482. The
payment must include the FCC Registration Number (FRN) referenced above and also must note the
NAL/Acct. Number referenced above.

20. The response, if any, must be mailed to Maureen F. Del Duca, Chief, Investigations and
Hearings Division, Enforcement Bureau, Federal Communications Commission, 445 12th Street, SW,
Room 3-B443, Washington, D.C. 20554 and MUST INCLUDE THE NAL/Acct. Number referenced
above.

21.  The Commission will not consider reducing or canceling a forfeiture in response to a
claim of inability to pay unless the respondent submits: (1) federal tax returns for the most recent three-
year period; (2) financial statements prepared according to generally accepted accounting practices
(“GAAP™); or (3) some other reliable and objective documentation that accurately reflects the
respondent’s current financial status. Any claim of inability to pay must specifically identify the basis for
the claim by reference to the financial documentation submitted. '

22.  Requests for payment of the full amount of this Notice of Apparent Liability under an
installment plan should be sent to: Chief, Revenue and Receivables Operations Group, 445 12th Street,
SW, Washington, DC 20554.%

23. Under the Small Business Paperwork Relief Act of 2002, Pub L. No. 107-198, 116 Stat.
729 (June 28, 2002), the FCC is engaged in a two-year tracking process regarding the size of entities
involved in forfeitures. If AMFM qualifies as a small entity and if it wishes to be treated as a small entity
for tracking purposes, please so certify to us within thirty (30) days of this NAL, either in its response to
the NAL or in a separate filing to be sent to the Investigations and Hearings Division. lts certification
should indicate whether AMFM, including its parent entity and its subsidiaries, meets one of the
definitions set forth in the list provided by the FCC’s Office of Communications Business Opportunities
(“OCBO™) set forth in Attachment B of this Notice of Apparent Liability. This information will be used
for tracking purposes only. AMFM’s response or failure to respond to this question will have no effect on
its rights and responsibilities pursuant to section 503(b) of the Communications Act. If AMFM has

55 See Infinity Broadcasting Operations, Inc.(WKRK-FM), 18 FCC Red 6915, 6919, § 13 (2003 )Xresponse pending).
56 47 C.F.R. § 1.1914 (2002).
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questions regarding any of the information contained in Attachment B, it should contact OCBO at (202)
418-0990.

24. Accordingly, IT IS ORDERED, that the complaints filed against Station WWDC-FM’s
broadcast of the “Elliott in the Moming” program on May 7 and 8, 2002, ARE GRANTED, and the
complaint proceeding IS HEREBY TERMINATED.”

25. IT IS FURTHER ORDERED that a copy of this Notice of Apparent Liability For
Forfeiture shall be sent, by Certified Mail Retum Receipt Requested, to AMFM Radio Licenses, LLC,
Kenneth E. Wyker, Esq., Senior Vice President and General Counsel, Clear Channel Communications,
Inc., 200 E. Basse Road, San Antonio, Texas 78209; to counsel for AMFM, Evan S. Henschel, Esq.,
Wiley, Rein & Fielding, LLP, 1776 K Street, NW, Washington, D.C. 20006; to Reverend Michael G.
Taylor; and to Catherine P. Henry.

FEDERAL COMMUNICATIONS COMMISSION

Marlene H. Dortch
Secretary

57 Consistent with section 503(b) of the Act and Commission practice, for the purposes of the forfeiture proceeding
initiated by this NAL, AMFM shall be the only party to this proceeding.
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Radio Station: WWDC-FM, Washington, DC
Dates/Time of Broadcasts: May 7, 2002 and May 8, 2002, between 6 a.m. and 10 p.m.
Material Broadcast: The Elliot in the Morning Show
May 7, 2002

E: Elliot

D: Diane

2M:  Dan

FC1: First Female Student Caller

FC2: Second Female Student Caller

F: Flounder

E: Hi. DC101.

FC1: Hi

E: - Whois this?

FC1: It’s [first female student cailer].

E: Hi [first female student caller]. How are you?

FC1: I’m good. How are you?

E: I’m doing well. You sound very chipper today, [first female student caller].
FC1: P’m ina good mood.

E: Yeah, how old are you?

FC1: I'm18.

E: Mmm. I like that. I think you’re our first 18 year-old.

FC1: [Giggling] 1 have been listening all moming, so.

D: You’d be the youngest.

E: You get the advantage going in.

FC1: Yes, I’'m the youngest.

E: Right, and ah, where do you live [first female student caller]?
FCl1: Alexandria.

E: Are you in school?

ATTACHMENT A

Program Transcript
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FC1:

FC1:

FC1:

E:

FCl:

FCi:

FCiI:

Ah, I should be in school right now, but I’ve been waiting to talk to you guys.

High school?

Yeah.

Oh, God bless.

Where?

Ah, Bishop O’Connell.

ExcelLent.

Oh, private school girl.

Any prom dates? [Laughter from E]

Ah, no [unintelligible] prom already.

As if the Catholic Church doesn’t have enough problems right now.
That’s true.

Alright. So, [first female student caller] are you a senior?

Yeah.

Ah, do ah do ah everybody there at school find uh you irresistibly hot?
Ah, I’d like to say so

Yesh. .You a popular girl at school?

Uh, decently popular.

Now are you going to Ivy League next year?

No.

[Laughter from 2M] Who cares? Are you kind of like an exhibitionist?
Yeah. Some people say so.

And you want to flash from time to time?

I’'ve been known to do that.

Yes, of course you have. I gotta ask you what size bra?

Ummm, 34-C.
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2M:
FCI1:

2M:

FC1:
E:

~FC1:

FC1:

FCI1:

Really?

Yeah.

For a senior, that’s excelLent. [Laughter from FC1}]

For a senior.

That’s good. - Ahhh alright.

How well do you know the football team? [Laughter from D]
Pretty well.

Awesome.

You’ve never lined like four or five guys up against lockers have you?
Not four or five.

One or two?

Two or three. [Laughter from E, D and 2M]

Really?

I think Dan just won the lottery. [Laughter from E, D and 2M]
So Dan’s quitting his job. [Laughter from E, D and 2M]
That’s the Powerball right there.

So wait a minute. So at school you’ve lined like two or three guys up against the lockers and like
ahhh. {Loud sucking sounds from E]

[Laughter ] Ahhh. Like yeah.

Really?

Yeah. I’'m here with my friend [second female student caller]. She wants to dance too.

I’1] get to [second female student caller] in a moment. [Laughter from E, D and 2M] Really.
Yeah. We want to dance with you,

Oh, uh not a problem honey.

[Break in the audio-tape]

Um, probably about 8 or 9.
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E:

FC1:

FC2:

Hm. Hm. Hm. Hm. Alright. And you can be here on Thursday. Well, what about school
on Thursday?

1
Yeah.

Ah, well. I don’t go to school quite as often as I should. [Laughter from E, D and 2M]
Quite as often as you should.

Hey, do you know my next door neighbor? [Laughter from E, D and 2M]

Well, [first female student caller] you’re already accepted to the college of your choice right?
Yes 1 am. [Laughter from E]

Where you gonna go?

I"m gonna go to VCU.

VCU.

Very good.

So that’s okay, but not the Ivy League question.

Yeah. No, VCU’s fine. No, that’s good.

She’s an artist.

You should check out Radford. [Laughter from E}

She could get all A’s there. [Laughter from E]

Alright. Very good, [first female student caller]. Yes, you hold on one second and Flounder’s
gonna get some information from you, okay?

Okay, no problem.

Alright. Very good. Hold on one second.

What about her friend? Did you talk to her friend?

[Second female student caller].

Oh, you know what put [second female student caller] on real quick.
Okay, here. Just a sec.

Hello

Hi [second female student caller].
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FC2:

FC2:

FC2:

FC2:

FC2:

2M:

FC2:

FC2:

Hi. How are you?

I’'m well. Thank you. [Second female student caller] are you also 187
Yes, I am.

And you also go to Bishop O’Connell?

Yes, | do.

Uh-huh. Let me ask you, you better looking than [first female student caller]?

¢ Um, Idon’t know. Ithink we’re both pretty hot.

Right.

Have you two ever hooked up?

No, but we’ve been known to do our little show at parties and what not.

Uh, what do you mean your little show?

Like we dance together, you know?

Yeah.

Hmmm.

Like with your boobies out?

Ah, it all depends on who’s there. I mean I’m not gonna just. Yeah.

Right.

Well, I mean like on Thursday like maybe I’ll have you two dance together?
Yes, of course.

Okay. ExcellLent. [Laughter from D] Are you also a 34-C?

I’m actually a 36-D. Full D.

Full D.

And my nickname with all my friends is “J-Lo” so I got the booty to go with it.
Oh, you got a little butt back there. '

Yeah.

Oh, that’s fine. 36-D. J-Lo. [Laughter from E, D and 2M]. Thank God for the hormones in
milk. [Laughter from E, D and 2M] Have you ever done the uh locker lineup at school?
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FC2:

FC2:

FC2:
2M:
E:

FC2:

Um, a little bit of that. I’'m more like in the secluded area.
Stairwell.

Yes.

Really.

Janitor’s closet.

More than-with the janitor. [Laughter from D] [Knocking sound]
Awesome.

[Impersonating a janitor with a Mexican accent] Need to be- coming on in please. Wet spill in
my pants please. [Laughter from E, D and 2M].

Oh God. [Laughter from D]

[Laughter from E] Have you ever made out with a teacher?
No. [Laughter]

No.

Naw, please.

Um, more than eight or nine times in school?

Ah, no I wouldn’t go that far.

No.

You don’t think badly of [first female student caller] because she has, do you?
No, I love [first female student caller].

In God’s way.

Uh-huh.

Truly in God’s way.

Uh-hm. [Laughter from FC2] Alright. Very good. And um missing school on Thursday would
be nothing new for you.

Nothing new.

Alright, very good. Hold on one second and ah Flounder will get both of your information.
We’ll see you on Thursday.
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Okay. Thank you.

Alright, very good.

Flounder will get your information. Hopefully we’ll see it.

Yes.

Man, we’re looking for Chinese finger ties. [Laughter from E, D and 2M]

Alright, now let me say this. [Laughter from E, D and 2M] Don’t send me your goddamn emails
about being angry that we’re doing these two ah high school kids.

They’re 18.

They’re 18 years-old. This is their own deal. Alright, so save the e-mails.

They’re not going to school anyway.

Save the e-mails.

[Laughter from E, D and 2M] It’s not like they’re studying for the SATs.

Save the you’re corrupting the youth of America. Please. Nobody. 1 didr’t hold a gun to
anybody’s head to line up nine guys against a locker. [Laughter from 2M] Alright. Diane, we
didn’t do anything wrong.

[Laughter from D] Hey, she was free with the information.

That private school’s gonna love you though.

That’s Bishop O’Connell.

Yeah, they’re very proud to;iay.

They should be.

Hey, you pay money to go to that school. [Laughter from D and 2M]

You know what, at least it’s not oﬁe of the priests.

Yes.

Save the hate e-mail. Okay. We did nothing wrong, right Flounder?

1 agree. [Laughter from E, D and 2M]}

We’re doin’ that school a service. You know how many kids they’re gonna’ get now? They’re
thinking about stalking Bishop O’Connell.

Right now everybody at [Unintelligible] council is going, “Goddamn it [Unintelligible] not at
our school.” [Laughter from E, D and 2M] Alright, very good, alright. So good, ] feel like we're
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starting to put together a very nice list. We’ll either revisit that again before we get off the air
today, maybe after school starts, [Laughter from 2M] or we will get some more contestants
tomorrow.  So, Thursday moming we’ll have everybody in here dancing and uh four will be
selected to dance for Kid Rock on Saturday night at the Patriot Center. I think I speak for all of
us when I can’t thank Kid Rock enough for choosing us to do this promotion. [Laughter from
2M] [Unintelligible].

[Break in the audio-tape]

May 8, 2002

E: Elliot

D: Diane

BD: Buddy .

MC: Male Student Caller

MC2: Second Male Student Caller

~™C3: Third Male Student Caller
...iC4:  Fourth Male Student Caller

MCS: Fifth Male Student Caller

FC3: Third Female Student Caller

E: Before we get into the news, Diane.

D: Yeah.

E: We had a little interest in Bishop O’Connell High School. [Laughter from E]

D: Yeah. 1 went to the website. [Laughter from E] I was looking at the mission statement.
[Laughter from E] “Our mission is to provide the students an education rooted in the life of Christ
[unintelligible] pursuit of excellence of the whole person.” And then you go down. [Laughter
from E] The desired learning resuits. [Laughter from E] Kinda’ take on a new meaning.
[Laughter from E and 2M] “Students practice a moral code based on gospel values as found in
our Catholic faith and worship.” [Laughter from E and 2M] “Express Christian values through

, participation in community service projects.”

E: Take him and drink for him. [Lavghter from E}

D: “Develop creative and critical thinking skills.” [Laughter from D] “Use those skills in
successfully solving problems.”

E: There you go, [first female student caller] and [second female student caller].

D: Mmm [Impersonating a young girl’s voice] What should I do? [Laughter from E]
“Leaming to work with others cooperatively.”

E: [Spoken as if E’s mouth was full] May peace be with you and also with you.

D: “Develop and maintain™

E: [Loud sucking sounds from E]

D: “Develop and maintain positive self worth through a healthy lifestyle.”
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E:

[Spoken as if E’s mouth was full] This heaithful [unintelligible] of protein. [Loud sucking
sounds from E}[Laughter from E, D and 2M] [Spoken as if E’s mouth was full] Hey, what do
you think will be going on at Bishop O’Connell High School today? [Laughter from E, D and
2M]

Talk in the office.

More guys have signed up for this school in the last half hour. [Laughter from E and 2M]
We done a service. [Laughter from E and 2M] Alright, very good. So Thursday morning.

“Our student body of 1,470 reflects the diversity of our community and neighborhoods.”

[Spoken as if E’s mouth was full] I’m part of the community. [Loud sucking sounds from
E] [Unintelligible] Oh no. {[Laughter from 2M and D] They’ll be in here. I love that. What are
you kidding me? .

They’re not going to be at school that day. [Laughter from E and 2M}

Alright. 8:15, dear God. Ah, what have we got going on here? We’re busy as hell. We got
some [unintelligible] tickets to give away. Oh

[Break in the audio-tape]

E:

BD:

E:

BD:

E:

BD:

E:

BD:

Let me get Buddy on the phone. Buddy.

Hey.

How are you, sir?

Good. How are?

Good, I I understand we caught you shaving.

Yeah, I’m about half way done. [Laughter from BD]

I say just leave it.

Leave half of it?

Yeah, just leave half of it. Ah, yesterday while we were going through our qualifying I guess
sometime around 7:45 we heard from [first female student caller] and [second female student
caller]. [First female student caller] and [second female student caller], two 18 year-olds, they
just so happen to go to Bishop O’Connell High School. And what I thought was a very nice
conversation with them yesterday. They informed as to some things they do at school. [Laughter
from BD] But they’re 18 years-old. They’re adults. They’re allowed to do what they want. And
then um 1 guess we heard very early this morning that both [second female student caller] and
[first female student caller] had been suspended from school. Now, Buddy, did the, | know,

principal call the station, true or false?

That is, that is true.
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BD:

E:

BD:

Right. Did you ah speak to um Bishop O’Connell? [Laughter from BD and 2M]

No. The Bishop did not speak. We ah traded messages. But I think the thing that he was
concerned about was the story that he got was that you coerced or badgered or otherwise
convinced these people or these two young ladies to say things that weren’t true.

Now, correct me if I'm wrong. I don’t feel like | badgered them in any way at all.

You asked them a question and they answered.

Yeah.

Well, like I said the principal apparently couldn’t have been nicer and ah was just
following what what he was told, so.

Right. Now, see we heard this moming 1 guess that ah Bishop O’Connell’s daughter, I don’t
know the guy’s name. What’s his name?

Uh, you know I don’t remember. It’s on my desk.

You lying sack. [Laughter from BD] No, come on. What’s his name?

I honestly don’t remember. |

Alright. Hey, Mack, see if you could find me someone from Bishop O’Connell real quick. Line
2? Fine, perfect. Tell him I’ll be there in a second. So anyway, what we did here was ah the

principal called [first female student caller] and [second female student caller] in to their office,
into his office. I’m assuming it’s a man. '

Right.

And um I guess had a conversation with them and then suspended them and then goton the PA
system at the school and talked about what a bunch of heathens we are. | may be paraphrasing.
[Laughter from BD]

1 didn’t hear that part.

Yeah, so apparently he uh he does not like your radio station, Buddy Riser.

Wow.

Yeah.

Well yeah this is before I had a chance to really discuss it with him.

This is the work of the devil right here. [Laughter from BD] So you didn’t you didn’t
touch base with him?

No, we we traded phone messages yesterday so.

What was his message to you?
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He he was he couldn’t have been nicer. I mean basically he’s just, he was just trying to figure out
exactly from our side. | mean obviously he had heard only their side of the story.

Right. Why did he suspend them though? That doesn’t seem right to me.

Now that I don’t know. 11 didn’t know that he had done that.

Yeah. See that doesn’t seem right. That that part kinda pisses me off.

Yeah.

I'm thinking we have a Support [second female student caller] and [first female student caller]
Concert at the school with [unintelligible]. [Laughter from E, D and 2M] But I don’t understand
why they got suspended. Hey listen if they’re blowing guys at the school, that’s not their fault,
that’s the school. The school needs to do a better job policing.

They should get counseling not suspension.

That’s right. Jesus wouldn’t just toss them aside. [Laughter from BD] Jesus would
welcome them in.

Yes, he would.

Some of the priests at the school would ask if they had brothers. [Laughter from BD]

Have we talked to the girls today? .

No. I have a feeling they won’t be calling today. No, Jesus took away their phone
privileges. [Laughter from BD] Alright, Buddy, alright. 1 was wondering if you got to touch
base with them.

No.

With the principal or whatever his face is.

No.

Alright, very good. Thank you very much, Buddy. See you in a bit. Finish cleaning up over
there.

Hi. Who’s this? Hello?
Yeah.

Yeah, who's this?

Uh, I won’t give my name out.

Yeah, I don’t blame you. You know if I went to Bishop O’Connell I wouldn’t give my name
either. That’s how you people get in trouble.

Ah yesh definitely.
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E: Alright. So what happened at school yesterday?

MC: Uh well um. First of all, at around 8:10 I was uh driving down with some friends before school
and uh we were listening to your station and uh we hear these two girls call up. They go off
about some stuff and uh. First of all, we want to find out who it is and uh. [ wouldn’t let you put
these girls on the stage with uh bikinis on.

E: Wait, say again. You what?

MC: [ wouldn’t let you put these girls on stage with bikinis, first of all.

E: 1 did get some e-mails saying that they were pretty hot.

MC: Ah, really? [Laughter from 2M]

E: Well, I can tell some people have different taste. Anyway, go shead.

MC: And uh we get to school and there’s a big ordeal about it. And uh I guess they just
suspended hard core because of it.

[Break in the audio-tape]

E: Yeah. But you’re kinda’ out of loop.

[Break in the audio-tape]

E:

MC2:

E:

MC2:

Hi. DC101.

Hey, what’s up?

Hey, who’s this?

This is [second male student caller].

[Second male student caller]. You go to Bishop O’Connell?
Yeah.

Yeah. So now tell me what happened yesterday?

All I heard was that these girls called in and our principal came in on like 8" period and he was
basically told us everything that happened.

Oh really. That’s very interesting to me. What did he say over the PA system that
happened?

I don’t know. Ican’t remember exactly what he said.

Right. Well, first of all, how did they break in with that announcement? What’s the
principal’s name there?
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MC2: Um, Burch.

E: Principal Burch.

MC2: Yeah.

E: Alright so Principal Burch gets on the uh PA and says, you know, excuse me Bishop
O’Connell students | have an announcement to make?

MC2: Yeah. He just wanted to clarify if there were like any rumors going on like really what
happened.

E: Oh, so wha.t did he say really happened?

MC2: Nah, He uh. Once again | don’t want to say exactly what he said.

E: No, go ahead. [Laughter from MC2] No you can say wha.t exactly he said. [Laughter from
MC2]} No, because honestly [ want to know what he said.

MC2: Well, honestly, 1 don’t really remember. But basically he just said that two girls called in and
said, uh, | don’t know. Honest?

E: But what did he say they did?

MC2: Um. Yeah, he said uh that. I don’t know. [Laughter]

2M: Come on now, dude.

E: Come on dude.

D: [Second male student caller]’s worried that he’s gonna get suspended.

MC2: I’m definitely am. But it’s not a biggy. {Laughter]

E: Who's your buddy in the car?

MC2: Ah, [third male student caller].

E: Yeah, put [third male student caller] on.

MC2: Ab, here’s [third male student caller].

E: Yeah. [Third male student caller]’s got a set of balls on him. [Laughtér from 2M]}

2M:  Yeah, here take [third male student caller].

MC3: Hey, what’s up fellas?

E: Hey [third male student caller]. Now you go to school there also?

MC3: Yes,Ido.
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E: Alright. What did, uh, what did Burch say?

MC3: Well, he uh just said some of the stuff that the girls said on your show.

E: Really? So did Principal Burch actually get on the PA system and talk about how they were
giving blowjobs in the hallway?

MC3: Well, let me, hold on for a second. Naw, he didn’t say that. He was very nice about it, you
know. He’s. In a Catholic school so you gotta be nice about it.

D: Right.

E: Right. So but now, so he ended up. Why did, why did, they get suspended? That’s what
I don’t understand.

MC3: You gotta have the mindset that this is a Catholic school and, you know, anything out of the
school really should have some moral binding.

E: Yeah.

MC3: He’s just worried about the school’s reputation.

2M:  The image.

MC3: Yeah.

2M: I mean people spend a lot of money to get that image.

D: Yeah, they do.

E: Yeah, but | mean, okay.

2ZM:  Well, that’s, I guess, the basis.

E: People spend a lot of money to go to college. It ain’t like people ain’t screwing there.

MC3: Yeah, that’s true. But, he wants to have like, you know, the mindset of him being a good,
you know, person that gives these children moral teachings, that kind of stuff.

E: Is Burch married?

MC3: Yes.

E: Anybody willing to bet he’s never gotten a blowjob from his wife?

MC3: [Laughter] Ah, I don’t want to think about it. [Laughter from E] He’s a very nice guy. I like him
a lot. He’s really nice.

b: Of course you do. [Laughter from 2M]

E: Very good, [third male student caller]. [Laughter from D] You’re very smart kid. [Laughter

from D] I like you.
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MC3: ExcellLent. ExcellLent.

2M: Do you know his daughter?

MC3: I uh.

E: Yeah. His daughter is apparently the one that calied, that little rat.
D: Is she older?

MC3: [don’t. Burch’s?

E: Yeah, Burch’s daughter. Does she go to school there?

MC3: No, no.

E: Oh, so she’s already out.

MC3: I’ve I’ve never met her.

E: Right. But Burch is a pretty cool guy who obviously has a little issue with us.
MC3: Yeah. Well he just wants to look out for, you know, his students.

E: - Did he mention us by name?

MC3: No.

E: What do you mean no? What did he say like “a local radio station?”
MC3: He said “DC101,” but he didn’t

E: ExcelLent.

2M:  Oh, we got press. [Clapping]

E: That’s good, that’s good. At least let ‘em let ‘em know what they should be listening to  Burch.
[Laughter from D]

MC3: ExcelLent. Excellent.

E: Alright [third male student caller].

D: [Third male student caller]’s very nervous right now.

E: No, [third male student caller] you're fine. You’re fine.
MC4: Hi Diane.

D: Hi.
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E: [Unintelligible] [Laughter from D and MC3] Hey, [third male student caller], let me ask you, you
weren’t one of the guys that [first female student caller] and [second female student caller] blew
in the hallways, were you?

MC3: Ah naw, naw, naw

E: No naw naw naw.

MC3: [don’tthink I’d let them.

E: Okay, alright, very good, very good. You’d give it a couple of years though.

MC3: | just want to say Hi to Diane.

D: Thanks, [third male student caller]. Have a nice day at school.

MC3,MC4: Bye, see ya later, bye. [Unintelligible] [Laughter from MC3, MC4, E, D and iM]

E: We got a phone number for, ah, the school?

D: The main number.

E: Yeah, I’ll take that. Hi, DC101.

MCS5: Hi Elliot. This is, this is, ah, [fifth male student caller].

E: Yes, of course it is.

2M:  Sure.

E, 2M: Hi [fifth male student caller].

MCS5: Yeah. 1goto O’Connell.

E: Right.

MCS: And, uh, I just want to let you know that the girls are not 18. They’re only 17.

E: But that’s not my fault though. Listen.

MCS: No dude, no dude. I know exactly like what happened. You didn’t manipulate them at all. But
when they went into the office yesterday they were like “Oh, yeah, well he manipulated us into
saying these bad things.” And Mr. Burch gets on. Would you turn that off?

E: Yeah, please.

MCS5: Mr. Burch gets on and goes, ah, yeah they are all remorseful for what happened and they want to
let everyone know that, like, they were manipulated or whatever or something like that. And I,

like, they knew exactly what they were doing.

E: Yeah. And first of all, 1 think we asked twice how old they were. Both of them said they
were 18. You know what, if they lied, they lied. That’s not my problem.
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MCS: Yeah, dude. It’s like, it's like their fault and they just made. 1 feel bad because they made the
school look like a bunch of sluts or whatever and we’re really not.

E: Well, listen you gotta have some kind of pride in something. [Laughter from D] But the,
ah, you know, we didn’t badger them. We didn’t manipulate them. You heard the show
yesterday.

MCS: Yeah. | was listening to it. I thought it was kind of funny because then 1 knew exactly who it
was. [Laughter from E, D and 2M]

E: See so um, you know I can’t really say | fault [first female student caller] and [second female
student caller] ‘cause listen they know they’re getting thrown out of school. 1’d say that too.

MCS5: They’re coming back.

E: Well, how long did they get suspended for?

MC5: Um, I think like maybe two days or whatever.

E: Right.

MCS5: It’s almost like a good deal.

E: Well, yeah exactly. Well, at least they’re free to come in tomorrow.
D: What are their parents doing though?

MCS; I don’t know. I think they’re probably in trouble with them too.

E: Oh really.

D: I would think so.

E: I hear Burch told [first female student caller] she’s gotta give up semen for Lent last year.
2M:  Agh.

D: Jesus Christ.

2M: Doyou knov;' them very well?

MCS5: Yeah, I’m pretty close them. At least one of them.

E: Really? Have you ever been lined up, have you ever had your back up against a locker?
[Laughter from D]

MCS: No. Actually they don’t do that kind of stuff at school.
E: At school.

2M: No. They save that.
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FC3:

Actually, | hope 1 just don’t wanna know about it. They can do whatever they want. 1 just
don’t want to know about it.

Alright, very good. Well, listen I’m sorry about the big uproar at your school yesterday.
Ah, it was kind of amusing.

Good. [Laughter from 2M] Good, alright, dude, [fifth male student caller]. Thank you very
much for calling.

Thank you, you’re welcome.

You’re gonna need to hand me the handset and let me just call them. [Dial tone, dialing]
Oops, that’s not good. [Dial tone, dialing] Agh. [Dial tone] Because I hate this phone
system. [Dialing] Because now it’s a fight. Uh-huh. [Sound of phone ringing] Uh, uh, hands
free. They gotta be in the office by now.

Yeah.

7:30.

The administration should be.

I was looking at the.

Maybe Jesus will answer.

The class schedule. Home room.

What time does home room start? Hi, Bishop O’Connell. Um, who am [ speaking with?
Hi, Mrs. Minyet. You’re not on the air. This is Elliott calling from DC101. P’m trying to
find Principal Burch, please. Hello. Hello. I don’t know if I'm on hold or if ’m uh talking
to Mr. Click.

Really.

Maybe you’ll find out in a second.

Hello. They don’t say, “Hold.”

They never even said “please hold” or?

No.

Hang on?

First bell’s at 7:55. You know what. [Dial tone, sound of tone buttons, ringing] [Laughter from
2M] Shhh. Come on. They’re afraid to touch the phone. Ahh, come on now I get an answering
machine. Hi DC101.

Hey, what’s up Elliot?
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FC3:

FC3:

2M:

FC3:

IM:

FC3:

FC3:

Hey, who is this?

Let’s see, what can you call me? I’m scared too now like all the other [unintelligible]

Ah, don’t be scared.

[Laughter] You can call me, you can call me [third female student caller]. How about that?
Okay, (third female student caller]. Yes.

You can call me [third female student caller]. Well, 1 go to O’Connell like all the rest of them.
Those are all my friends that were calling earlier. And I just wanted to say that it was like the

reason that they all got suspended wasn’t because, you know, like, about anything, because it was

immoral or anythmg what they were gonna do. Because | don’t even think they were really
gonna come in  because they were 1ymg, like, they weren’t 18 or anything else. They were a
bunch of sophomores. Butthere’sa.

Oh, God. | wish they would come in.

So they’re 16.

Anyway, go ahead.

There’s a rule in the student handbook that says that if you do anything, like, in the name,
like, using O’Connell’s name or, like, in O’Connell uniform that you can be suspended because
that’s slander towards the school.

Oh, that’s, uh, you’re impugning the reputation.

Yeah, so when you went on the website and everything that’s when Mr. Burch freaked out
and was, like, oh, blah blah blah, this makes my school look horrible.

Hey, Burch, don’t put up a website then, you jackass.

What I 1 was just, I was just reading the, uh, the beliefs and mission and philosophy of the school.
Yeah, if anything

I know.

We gave them some positive publications here.

Yeah.

And also I wanted to say that I'm really sorry cause there were a lot of really hot girls,
including myself, that were gonna come in.

Oh, godamnit.

And we were gonna audition tomorrow moming.
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FC3:

FC3:

Alright.

We really wanted to doit.

Yeah. I wish you would have.

I’m sorry.

Alright. Well, Burch had to go F it up for everybody.

Bye [third female student caller].

Let me try one more time and then I’ll take a break. And then we’ll get into some real
qualifying. Uh, I'll just dial here. [Dialing tones] You think they won’t answer at Bishop
when I call cause a big sign that goes off “Jew is calling.” [Laughter D and 2M] [Impersonating
a female voice] Yes, Principal Burch, please? What do you mean he’s not available? Oh, don’t
hang up. F you. [Laughter from 2M]

They know what matters [unintelligible].

What a bitch she is.

What she say?

I can’t believe she doesn’t even say anything to you.

[In a mocking voice] “He’s not available.” Click. 1 bet he’s available. He’s probably
standing right there listening to the goddamn show.

I guess they have to go tend to the pro-life memorial. [Laughter from E] that I was just reading
about.

Come on Burch you big pussy, call. You know he’s sitting in there listening to it. Speak to a Jew.
[Laughter from D] Goddamnit. Alright, alright. You know what, let’s move on then. Ah, 202-
432-1101, toll free 1-800-33DC101. .Ah, we need qualifiers for, ah, Saturday night. If you want
to dance in the cage with Kid Rock up on stage 202-432-1101, toll free 1-800-33DC101. We’ll
sign up last day for qualifying and then tomorrow’s the big audition, tomorrow around 7:30.
And then four women will move on to Saturday night where they’ll dance up on stage at the
Patriots Center. Kid Rock will pay for the night. 202-432-1101, toll free 1-800-33DC101.

[Commercial for the Kid Rock Dance-in-the-Cage Concert]
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ATTACHMENT B
FCC List of Small Entities

As described below, a “small entity” may be a small organization,
a small governmental jurisdiction, or a small business,

(1). Small Organization _

Any not-for-profit enterprise that is mdependently owned and operated and
is not dominant in its field.

(2) Smiill Governmental Jurisdiction .

Governments of cities, counties, towns, to§vnsh|ps, villages, school d:stncts, or
special districts, with a population of less than fifty thousand.

(3) Small Business

Any business concern that is independently owned and operated and
is not dominant in its field, and meets the pertinent size criterion described below.

IndastryType | Descriptionof Small Business Size Standards
Cable Services or Systems
| Special Size Standard -
Cable Systems Small Cable Company has 400,000 Subscribers
Nationwide or Fewer

Cable and Other Program Distribution

Open Video Systems $12.5 Million in Annual Receipts or Less

Common Carrier Services.and Related Entities

Wireline Carriers and Service providers

Local Exchange Carriers, Competitive .
Access Providers, Interexchange Carriers, 1,500 Employees or Fewer
Operator Service Providers, Payphone V
Providers, and Resellers

Note: With the exception of Cable Systems, all size standards are expressed in either millions of
dollars or number of employees and are generally the average annual receipts or the average
employment of a firm. Directions for calculating average annual receipts and average
employment of a firm can be found in

13 CFR 121.104 and 13 CFR 121.106, respectively.

International Services

International Broadcast Stations

|
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International Public Fixed Radio (Public and
Control Stations)

Fixed Satellite Transmit/Receive Earth
Stations

Fixed Satellite Very Small Aperture
Terminal Systems

Mobile Satellite Earth Stations

Radio Determination Satellite Earth Stations

$12.5 Million in Annual Receipts or Less

Geostationary Space Stations

Non-Geostationary Space Stations

Direct Broadcast Satellites

Home Satellite Dish Service

Mass Media Services

Television Services

Low Power Television Services and
Television Translator Stations

$12 Million in Annual Receipts or Less

TV Auxiliary, Special Broadcast and Other
Program Distribution Services

Radio Services

Radio Auxiliary, Special Broadcast and
Other Program Distribution Services

$6 Million in Annual Receipts or Less

Multipoint Distribution Service

Auction Special Size Standard —
Small Business is less than $40M in annual gross
revenues for three preceding years

Wireless and Commercial Mobile Services

Cellular Licensees

220 MHz Radio Service — Phase I Licensees

1,500 Employees or Fewer

220 MHz Radio Service — Phase 11
Licensees

Auction special size standard -
Small Business is average gross revenues of

700 MHZ Guard Band Licensees

$15M or less for the preceding three years

Private and Common Carrier Paging

(includes affiliates and controlling principals)
‘Very Small Business is average gross revenues of
$3M or less for the preceding three years (includes
affiliates and controlling principals)

Broadband Personal Communications

Services (Blocks A, B, D, and E) 1,500 Employees or Fewer

Broadband Personal Communications Auction special size standard -

Services (Block C) Small Business is $40M or less in annual gross
Broadband Personal Communications revenues for three previous calendar years
Services (Block F) Very Small Business is average gross revenues of

Narrowband Personal Communications
Services

$15M or less for the preceding three calendar
years (includes affiliates and persons or entities
that hold interest in such entity and their affiliates)

Rural Radiotelephone Service 1,500 Employees or Fewer

Air-Ground Radiotelephone Service

800 MHz Specialized Mobile Radio Auction special size standard -

900 MHz Specialized Mobile Radio Small Business is $15M or less average annual
gross revenues for three preceding calendar years

Private Land Mobile Radio 1,500 Employees or Fewer

Amateur Radio Service N/A
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Aviation and Marine Radio Service

Fixed Microwave Services

1,500 Employees or Fewer

Public Safety Radio Services

Small Business is 1,500 employees or less
Small Government Entities has population of
less than 50,000 persons

Wireless Telephony and Paging and
Messaging

1,500 Employees or Fewer

Personal Radio Services

N/A

Offshore Radiotelephone Service

1,500 Employees or Fewer

Wireless Communications Services

39 GHz Service

Small Business is $40M or less average annual
gross revenues for three preceding years

Very Small Business is average gross revenues of
$15M or less for the preceding three years

Multipoint Distribution Service

Auction special size standard (1996) —

Small Business is $40M or less average annual
gross revenues for three preceding calendar years
Prior to Auction —

Small Business has annual revenue of $12.5M or
less

Multichannel Multipoint Distribution
Service

Instructional Television Fixed Service

$12.5 Million in Annual Receipts or Less

Local Multipoint Distribution Service

Auction special size standard (1998) —

Small Business is $40M or less average annual
gross revenues for three preceding years

Very Small Business is average gross revenues of
$15M or less for the preceding three years

218-219 MHZ Service

First Auction special size standard (1994) —

Small Business is an entity that, together with its
affiliates, has no more than a $6M net worth and,
after federal income taxes (excluding carryover
losses) has no more than $2M in annual profits
each year for the previous two years

New Standard —

Small Business is average gross revenues of
$15M or less for the preceding three years
(includes affiliates and persons or entities that
hold interest in such entity and their affiliates)
Very Small Business is average gross revenues of
$3M or less for the preceding three years (includes
affiliates and persons or entities that hold interest
in such entity and their affiliates)

Satellite Master Antenna Television
Systems

$12.5 Million in Annual Receipts or Less

24 GHz — Incumbent Licensees

1,500 Employees or Fewer

24 GHz — Future Licensees

Small Business is average gross revenues of
$15M or less for the preceding three years
(includes affiliates and persons or entities that
hold interest in such entity and their affiliates)
Very Small Business is average gross revenues of
$3M or less for the preceding three years (includes
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affiliates and persons or entities that hold interest
in such entity and their affiliates)

Miscellaneous

On-Line Information Services $18 Million in Annual Receipts or Less

Radio and Television Broadcasting and
Wireless Communications Equipment
Manufacturers 750 Employees or Fewer

Audio and Video Equipment Manufacturers

Telephone Apparatus Manufacturers
(Except Cellular) 1,000 Employees or Fewer
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Statement of Commissioner Michael J. Copps,
Dissenting

Re: Infinity Broadcasting Operations, Inc., Licensee of Stations WNEW(FM), New York, New York;
WYSP(FM), Philadelphia, Pennsylvania; KYCY(AM), San Francisco, California; Infinity Radio
Operations, Inc., Licensee of Stations WBUF(FM), Buffalo, New York; KSFN(AM), North Las Vegas,
Nevada; WXTM(FM), Cleveland Heights, Ohio; WAZU(FM), Circleville, Ohio; KUPL(AM), Portland,
Oregon; Infinity Radio Subsidiary Operations, Inc., Licensee of Station KXOA(FM), Roseville,
California; Infinity Broadcasting Corparation of Dallas, Licensee of Station KLLI(FM), Dallas, Texas:
Infinity Broadcasting Corporation of Washington, D.C., Licensee of Station WJIFK-FM, Manassas,
Virginia; Infinity Holdings Corporation, Licensee of Station WCKG(FM), Elmwood park, linois;
Hemisphere Broadcasting Corporation, Licensee of Station WBCN(FM), Boston, Massachusetts, Notice
of Apparent Liability for Forfeiture; AMFM Radio Licenses, Licensee of Station WWDC-FM,
Washington, D.C., Notice of Apparent Liability for Forfeiture

1 dissent from the Commission’s decisions to provide no more than a slap on the wrist to Infinity
(owned by Viacom) and Clear Channel rather than take serious action to address indecency on our
airwaves. Today, the majority proposes a $27,500 fine for each incident of airing what the majority
agrees appears to be indecent programming at a time when children likely composed a significant portion
of the audience.

In the case of Infinity/Viacom, thirteen stations ran the “Opie & Anthony Show” which contained
a broadcast of sexual activity at St. Patrick’s Cathedral in New York as part of an on-air stunt. In this
stunt, called “Sex for Sam,” couples received points for having sex in public places. In addition to St.
Patrick’s Cathedral, the broadcast described sexual activity at restaurants, at the Disney Store and at FAO
Schwartz. In the case of Clear Channel, one of its stations, WWDC-FM, broadcast an “Elliot in the
Morning” show which included a station-sponsored promotion to which female high school students -
called in for the opportunity to audition to dance in a cage at an upcoming rock concert. The show’s hosts
questioned the girls about their sexual activities at their school -- Bishop Denis J. O’Connell High School
— actively solicited other high school students to call, and made repeated and graphic references to oral
sex.

Neither of these cases is a difficult call. Both are outrageous and both were run by stations whose
owners knew better and whose parent companies have had previous indecent broadcasts brought before
this Commission. I believe we should designate these cases for a hearing on the possible revocation of
these stations’ licenses, as provided for by section 312(a)(6) of the Communications Act.

1 am particularly troubled by the decision on the “Opie and Anthony Show.” I defy anyone to
read the transcript and argue that this broadcast does not violate the statutory prohibition against airing
indecent material. And I defy anyone to argue that a $27,500 fine to each of the stations owned by a
multi-billion dollar conglomerate is adequate to address this clear violation of federal law.

Infinity/Viacom could pay this entire fine by tacking just one more commercial onto one of its
prime-time TV shows and probably pocket a profit to boot. Some punishment!

The majority admits that each of these stations appears to have egregiously and extensively
violated the statutory ban on broadcast of indecent material. The majority claims further to recognize the
seriousness of the offense. And it even concedes that the Commission has the option of the license
revocation process. But then it turns timid and decides that the appropriate recourse for this filth is a
$27,500 fine against each station. In other words, the majority determines that these stations deserve yet
another chance before the Commission even considers revoking a license. When, I ask, will this end?
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This is not the first action against a station owned by Infinity. Infinity stations paid $1.7 million
in 1995 to settle a series of indecency cases. As part of that settlement, Infinity agreed to take steps to
prevent further broadcast of indecent material. More complaints involving other Infinity broadcasts
followed. Last April, this Commission issued another tepid proposed fine against another station owned
by this same company —~ WKRK-FM in Detroit — which had aired some of the most vulgar and disgusting
indecency that | have had the misfortune to examine. In that decision, the majority warned that repeated
serious violations by Infinity could result in the revocation of station licenses. The majority repeats that
same warning again in this decision.

Yet, two months prior to the airing of “Sex for Sam” on the “Opie and Anthony Show,” this
agency cited the same show for three separate apparent violations of the indecency statutes. These shows
aired between November 2000 and January 2001. In one instance, a graphic song about a father having
oral sex with his young daughter was broadcast. In the second instance, the “Opie and Anthony Show”
aired another graphic song by a man seeking girls between the ages of two and three for sex. In the third
instance, the show provided detailed instructions to a teenager and then broadcast her rubbing a telephone
between her legs.

If this situation does not meet the majority’s test for repeated violators, I fail to understand what
would. The message to licensees is clear. Even egregious repeated violations will not result in revocation
of a license. Rather, they will result only in a financial penalty that doesn’t even rise to a serious cost of
doing business.

I wonder when this Commission will finally take a firm stand against the “race to the bottom” on
our airwaves. The time has come for us to send a message that we are serious about enforcing the
indecency laws of our country and that we will be especially vigilant about the actions of repeat offenders
such &s those cases before us here. Instead we turn an apparently incurable deaf ear to millions of
Americans who are fed up with the patently offensive programming sent into their homes so regularly.
Today’s decision does nothing to discourage such programming,

It all comes down to this: station owners aren’t given licenses to use the public’s airwaves to
peddle smut. They are given licenses to serve the public interest.
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Separate Statement of Commissioner Kevin J. Martin

Re: AMFM Radio Licenses, LLC, Licensee of Station WWDC-FM, Washington, DC,, Notice of Apparent
Liability for Forfeiture

1 support the finding in this Notice of Apparent Liability that the licensee apparently violated our rule
against the broadcast of indecent content, but | would have proposed a higher fine. I am concerned, for
example, that the hosts of this show engaged in these on-the-air telephone conversations with minors. As
I have said in similar cases, we could have found that each time the show’s hosts started talking about an
indecent topic or had a separate distinct conversation, the ensuing conversation constituted a separate
violation.! In prior cases, the Commission has acknowledged that we have the discretion to consider each

indecent utterance a separate violation.”

! See Separate Statement of Commissioner Kevin J. Martin, Infinity Broadcasting Operations, Inc., Licsnesee of
Station WKRK-FM, Detroit, Michigan, Notice of Apparent Liability for Forfeiture, 18 FCC Rcd 6915 (2003)

(Infinity Detroit NAL).
2 Infinity Detroit NAL at para. 13 (clarifying that the Commission could pursue enforcement action for each

indecent utterance). See also 18 U.S.C. § 1464 (specifying that “[w]hoever utters any obscene, indecent, or profane
language by means of radio communication shall be fined under this title or imprisoned not more than two years, or

both.™).
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SEPARATE STATEMENT OF
COMMISSIONER JONATHAN ADELSTEIN

Re: AMFM Radio Licenses, LLC, Notice of Apparent Liability for Forfeiture

This Notice sends the unmistakable message to Clear Channel and other broadcasters who violate
our indecency rules: We are stepping up our enforcement. Once again, we give fair warning that the
Commission can and will avail itself of a range of enforcement sanctions, including the initiation of
proceedings that could result in the revocation of these stations’ licenses. 1 will not hesitate to consider
such revocation proceedings for serious violations that occur after the explicit notice we provided in April
in WKRK-FM. Similarly, as broadcasters were explicitly notified in April, I will also support on a going-
forward basis an approach that treats each indecent utterance, such as distinct conversations or program
segments, as a separate violation under our rules. This will substantially increase our fines, which by
statute are capped at an inadequate level, so they will be more commensurate with the offenses.

The Commission reached the obvious conclusion that AMFM Radio Licenses, whose corporate
parent is Clear Channel, broadcast indecent material and should be tiable for the full statutory maximum
forfeiture amount. It took far too long for us to reach this conclusion, and | hope we will act more swiftly
in the future to send a clear message.

AMFM’s actions here were unquestionably willful and egregious. Hosts of the “Elliot in the
Moming” program repeatedly probed school students about sexual activity conducted inside a Catholic
high school and actively solicited calls from other students to elicit similar information. The hosts
amplified their sexual banter by simulating the act of oral sex with numerous sound effects broadcast over
the air. Goading school children in a pandering manner to discuss sexual activities of students and
administrators in a school setting shows a deliberate attempt to heighten the shock to hstenem The
broadcasts clearly offended community standards.

Unfortunately, the statutory constraints on our ability to level fines are currently inadequate, as
the low fines can be considered by broadcasters as a cost of doing business and not a serious deterrent. In
this case, a fine below the statutory maximum would not accurately reflect the circumstances and
AMFM’s culpability. I believe strongly that our fines, or other appropriate enforcement actions, should

- be sufficient to deter broadcasters from broadcasting indeceit material on the public’s airwaves at a time

when children are listening. Today’s action, while an important step in that direction, must be followed
by more stringent, swifter and stricter enforcement of our statutory obligation to prevent indecent
broadcasts over the public airwaves.
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